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Financial Highlights

2013 2012
Results HK$ Million HK$ Million

Revenue 1,444 1,446

Profit before depreciation, amortisation, interest and tax 165 201

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 73 120

Basic earnings per share HK$0.15 HK$0.24

Dividend per share
- Interim HK7 cents HK7 cents
—Final HK4 cents HK7 cents

2013 2012
Financial Position HK$ Million HK$ Million

Total assets 1,803 1,737

Net debts (bank borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) 78 47

Shareholders’ equity 1,142 1,069

Net assets per share HK$2.29 HK$2.14

Revenue Profit Attributable to Owners
HK$ Million HKS$ Million
1,446 1,444 131
120
1,165
73

11 12 13 11 12 13
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Eagle
Nice (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
hereby present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2013.

Industry Review

While the PRC reported stable economic growth against
the general slowdown in the global economy in 2012,
consumers were cautious in their spending given
uncertainties in the economic outlook. The market for
sporting goods was subject to a decline in demand for
consumer goods as the European and U.S. economies
continued to be troubled by high unemployment rates in
2012. In the PRC, economic growth has slowed down since
recent years following successive periods of solid growth.
According to the “2012 China Sporting Goods Industry White
Paper” published by China Sporting Goods Federation, the
PRC’s domestic sportswear brands experienced a second
consecutive year of decline in sales in 2012. According to
the White Paper, domestic sportswear sales by Mainland
listed enterprises in 2012 dropped by nearly 20% as
compared to the previous year, indicating the end of a
cycle of high growth for the PRC's sporting goods industry.
The global sporting goods industry is currently subject
to a decline in the overall demand for sporting goods, a
changing structure and pattern in consumer spending, piling
stocks and shrinking profit. Production costs have increased
significantly in line with unyielding inflationary prices in
Asia as a result of quantitative easing measures adopted by
various countries, coupled with substantially higher levels
of minimum labour wages and benefits introduced by the
PRC and major manufacturing nations in Southeast Asia in
recent years.

summary of Results

Demand for sportswear inevitably sharply declined in
2012 given the slowdown in global economy coupled
with excessive inventory levels for sportswear brands.
With proactive and incessant efforts of the Group against
austere market conditions, the Group reported turnover of
HK$1,444.0 million, which was comparable with the previous
year's turnover albeit a slight decrease by HK$2.0 million
or 0.1%. Nevertheless, net profit of the Group for the year
decreased by HK$47.4 million or 39.3% to HK$73.0 million.
Amidst ongoing difficulties in the business environment,
costs increased significantly for the year as the Group was
facing force majeure such as ongoing RMB appreciation,
increase in labour wages and benefits mandated by the
PRC and Indonesian governments respectively, the removal
of tax concessions for foreign investors coupled with the
introduction of numerous new taxes as part of the PRC
government’s tax reform program.

The Group’s new plants in Jiangxi Province, the PRC and
Banten Province, Indonesia (the “New Plants”), under
planning and construction since 2010, were in full operation
during the year. Although abundant cheap labour and tax
concessions were available in these two regions, local
workers were still under training and the depreciation
charge for property, plant and equipment increased
significantly under applicable accounting standards following
the full operation of the New Plants. The fact that the New
Plants had yet to achieve a breakeven was the major factor
affecting the Group’s net profit for the year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Business and Market Review

While the industry as a whole continued to be subject to
intense competition, change became the key to success for
market player. In response to the situation, the Group has
vigorously carried out reforms on all fronts in recent years
to consolidate its strengths for future development.

Leveraging complementary strengths of
different regions and driving sustainable
growth with research and development
Relocation to the central and western regions of the PRC
as well as developing countries in Southeast Asia has
become a major trend for manufacturers previously based
in the PRC’s coastal regions that have been subject to
rising production costs and limitations in resources and
the environment for development. The Group started to
expand its business to Jiangxi Province, the PRC and Banten
Province, Indonesia in previous years, as a solution to
rising labour cost, inadequate land supply and insufficient
domestic labour supply in the Mainland China. We have
positioned the New Plants as large-scale, standardised
production bases leveraging the labour cost advantage and
land resources in the PRC’s central and western regions.
The plant in Indonesia, which represents the Group’s first
step towards international development, has enhanced the
flexibility of our order arrangements and the strength of
our diversification strategy. Meanwhile, the existing plants
in Guangdong Province, the PRC have been designated
as research and development bases characterised by
advanced technologies, high added value and low resource
consumption capitalising on its existing strengths in
technology, research and development and marketing. By
leveraging the mutually complementary strengths of the
new regions and the developed regions, the Group has built
a solid foundation for long-term development.

Close tracking of market demand to
support clients’ initiatives to address
market requirements

With the introduction of fashion element that changes the
appearance of sportswear and the technology element that
enhances its functions amid a rapidly evolving consumers’
market, sportswear has been transformed from a durable
consumer product to fast fashion. As a result, the current
market strategy of our customers is underpinned by
“market segment sub-division, collective designs, small-
batch production and style variety”. To afford best services
for customers, the Group has built a swift-acting marketing
regime that is highly flexible, resilient, adaptable to changes
and capable of prompt response. Our in-house design team
has kept a close tracking of market demand and maintained
frequent liaison with suppliers to learn about functions of
novel materials and innovative production technologies,
while enhancing communication with customers to ensure
understanding of their requirements and needs. In view of
production, the sample manufacturing process has been
optimised to improve production capacity and quality while
shortening the lead-time for sample production, to enable
customers’ launch of new products in the retail market
within the shortest possible time.

To further support our customers’ market strategy of
“market segment sub-division and style variety,” the
Group vigorously expanded its sample production line
during the year to cope with the significantly increased
quantity of styles developed and enhance production
flexibility. Equipment at the test laboratory has also been
enhanced with the addition of advanced equipment such
as Formaldehyde Determination, Automatic Fabric Air
Permeability Tester, and Digital Fabric Water Permeability
Tester, sO as to expedite the speed of laboratory tests
and shorten the lead-time of development of new product
styles.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Being focused on the PRC, the U.S. and
Europe as major markets while vigorously
developing new clientele

It has been the Group’s market strategy in recent years
to vigorously develop the European and U.S. markets
while continuing to make inroads in the market of the
PRC. While the European and U.S. economies have yet
to see full recovery from the blow of the 2008 financial
tsunami, they have remained major consumer nations as
major economies in the world, providing enormous market
demand for sporting goods. As for the emerging markets,
the PRC has outperformed its peers over the years, being
intensely contested for by most sporting brands even
though demand in the market has slowed down in recent
years. The Group expects to adhere to this market strategy
in future. The PRC, the U.S. and Europe remained the top
three markets of the Group during the year under review,
accounting for 32%, 21% and 17% of our sales for the year,
respectively. Sales generated from the PRC, the Group's
largest market, were generally stable with a minimal year-
on-year decrease of approximately 2% reflecting mainly
intense competition in the industry. The U.S. replaced
Europe as the Group’s second largest market with sales
growing significantly by approximately 64%, while sales
in Europe decreased substantially by approximately 43%,
resulting from customers' business strategy of reallocation
of orders. The Group has been able to sustain stable overall
sales and mitigate the impact of market volatility or changes
in clients’ business strategies on its sales on the back of its
strategy of market diversification.

Outlook

Market demand for sportswear is expected to sustain
given growing public awareness of health issues and
increasing popularity of sporting activities, while the trend
of fashionable and leisure sportswear in recent years
has provided immense potential to drive further growth
of the sportswear market. At the same time, we are also
well-prepared as a sportswear manufacturer to embrace
future challenges in view of escalating competition in the
sporting goods industry and increasing demand for product
quality and functions from the consumers. The Group
remains confident in the long-term prospect of the market
for sporting goods and the Board intends to maintain the
Group's dividend payout policy.

Labour supply and labour costs are very important factors
affecting the operation of sportswear manufacturers given
sportswear manufacturing being labour-intensive industry.
To pursue sustained development at reasonable costs,
the Group commenced the construction of production
bases in Jiangxi Province, the PRC and Banten Province,
Indonesia in 2010 to leverage the relatively low labour
costs and abundant labour supply in these regions. The
New Plants became fully operational during the year and
we are stepping up with the training of workers to enhance
efficiency. Coupled with the depreciation factor associated
with property, plant and equipment of the New Plant, the
Group does not anticipate the New Plants to make profit
contributions in the coming one to two years, although they
will unquestionably provide the driving force for the Group’s
growth in the long run.

In connection with supply-chain management, the Group
seeks to cope with the ever-changing consumer market
by adopting business measures on all fronts, such as
optimising its information technology system to cater for
customers’ requirements, adopting innovative technologies
to shorten production lead-time, refining lean production
to enhance efficiency and making ongoing investments
in research, development and design teams to improve
product functions and designs.

The Group is concerned with improving not only the
quality of its products, but also the quality of its human
resources, its invaluable assets, to help maintain a leading
edge in the intense market competition. The Group
has further optimised and adjusted its organisational
structure to enhance its operating efficiency following the
commissioning of the New Plants. The Group considers the
right employees as cornerstone to its development. It places
a strong emphasis on the selection, training, motivation
and retention of the employees, enhancing internal staff
training and development through a systematic human
resource management regime, while recruiting high-calibre
persons to facilitate future expansion. The Group’s human
resource management is based on the principle of matching
individual remuneration with the job position, performance
and abilities and ensuring competitiveness of remuneration
for core staff with a view to sustainable development for
the Group and its employees amidst a highly competitive
environment.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Social Responsibility

The Group fulfills its corporate social responsibility by
engaging in practical actions that bring warmth and affection
to the community and deliver long-term benefits to its
employees, the community and the environment. In addition
to charitable donations by the Group, staff volunteer teams
are also organized to participate in charitable fundraising
activities, holiday visits to underprivileged families and the
Bridge to China fundraising walkathon.

In response to the call for environmental protection, the
Group has launched a series of campaigns and activities
on environmental protection and energy conservation.
Through seminars and talks on how industrial pollution
jeopardises human life, health and workplace coupled with
relevant training sessions, it aroused employees’ awareness
of the importance of environmental protection and refuse
sorting and recycling. Refuse sorting and recycling have
been diligently implemented at our plants. The Group also
manufactures colourful and environment-friendly shopping
bags with scrap material with a view to reducing the
consumption of plastic bags, enhancing staff environmental
awareness and maximising the use of raw materials. An
environmental protection contest was held during the
year. The participating staff showed their creativity with
waste-turned items of trendy design, underpinning strong
environmental awareness at the Group.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the directors and the management for their
invaluable contributions during the year. | would also like
to thank our shareholders, suppliers, business partners
and customers for their unfailing support of the Group.
Appreciation is also due to all members of our staff for their
incessant efforts and dedicated services.

Chung Yuk Sing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013

"Award-winning work of Eagle Nice Environmental Protection Contest 2013"
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Financial and Operation Review

Review of Financial Performance

In recent years, the Group has focused on developing the
markets in the PRC, U.S. and the Europe which accounted
for 70.6% in aggregate of our total sales. The growth of
sportswear market in the PRC has recently slowed down
after years of tremendous growth. The European and U.S.
economies have been plagued by high unemployment
rate and decrease in demand for sportswear in emerging
markets giving rise to overcapacity and overstocking
encountered by most sportswear brands. In 2012,
sportswear manufacturers were affected, to different
extents, by actions of inventory clearance taken by
sportswear brands. In spite of decreasing global demand for
sportswear, the Group was able to sustain overall sales by
capitalizing its established cooperation relationship with our
customers. Turnover for the year slightly decreased by 0.1%
to HK$1,444.0 million from HK$1,446.0 million last year.

During the year, the toughest challenges that the Group
had encountered were increase in production costs which
resulted from rise in labour costs, Renminbi appreciation
and constant inflation. Meanwhile, the PRC government
has initiated tax reforms on cutting down tax preference
for foreign investors as well as introducing additional tax
types, leading to a soar in our production costs. Further,
since the two new plants of the Group set up in Jiangxi
Province, the PRC and Banten Province, Indonesia (the “New
Plants”) have commenced full operations during the year,
provision for depreciation of property, plant and equipment
was required to be made in respect of the New Plants and
depreciation charges for the year increased significantly.
Coupled with the fact that the workers in the New Plants
were still undergoing training, the operations had yet
achieved break-even during the year. As a result, our gross
profit dropped by HK$47.2 million to HK$249.9 million from
HK$297.1 million, and gross profit margin decreased by 3.2%
from 20.5% t0 17.3%.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses decreased
by HK$0.8 million (or 4.7%), which were due to decrease in
promotion and advertising expenses as compared with last
year. Increase in administrative expenses of HK$5.6 million
(or 4.3%) were principally due to employment of additional
managerial staff relating to investments in the New Plants,
as well as provision for depreciation of office buildings and
equipment of the New Plants after full operations of the
New Plants commenced during the year. Finance costs
increased by HK$1.7 million (or 36.5%) during the year as
the overall interest rate and outstanding bank borrowings
were higher than that of last year.

In respect of taxation, profit before tax decreased by
HK$57.9 million (or 38.0%), while the Group’s overall
tax expenses decreased by HK$10.6 million (or 32.9%).
Decrease in Hong Kong profit tax expenses was due to
profit drop in the Group’s business in Hong Kong; while
tax provision for business in the PRC increased as a result
of rise in applicable tax rate for the year under the tax
reforms in the PRC. The over-provision of tax was mainly
due to tax credit given by the PRC government. Based
on the latest guidelines issued by the PRC government in
respect of beneficial owner assessment, the Group could
enjoy preferential tax rate on distribution of profits from its
PRC subsidiaries under Mainland China/Hong Kong Double
Taxation Arrangement. Reversal of deferred tax of HK$2.2
million has been made as a result.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$73.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2013, representing a
decrease of 39.3% compared to HK$120.3 million last year.
The net profit margin decreased by 3.2% from 8.3% t0 5.1%
when compared with last year. Basic earnings per share
amounted to HK14.6 cents for the year compared to HK24.1
cents last year. The Board recommended a final dividend of
HK4 cents per share compared to HK7 cents per share last
year, which would result in the dividend payout ratio for the
whole year of 75% (2012: 58%).
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Financial and Operation Review (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year under review, the Group continued to
maintain a healthy liquidity position. The Group generally
finances its operations with internally generated resources
and banking facilities provided by its bankers. As at 31
March 2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$309.4 million (31 March 2012: HK$372.0
million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
("RMB"), US dollars and Indonesian Rupiah.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of HK$666.0 million (31 March 2012: HK$706.0
million), out of which HK$316.0 million (31 March 2012:
HK$356.0 million) were secured by corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and a subsidiary of the Company.
The banking facilities amounting to HK$390.0 million were
utilised by the Group as at 31 March 2013 (31 March 2012:
HK$427.6 million). As at 31 March 2013, the Group's total
bank borrowings was HK$387.6 million (31 March 2012:
418.9 million). As at 31 March 2013, based on the scheduled
repayments set out in the relevant loan agreements with
banks, the maturity profile of the Group’s bank borrowings
spread over four years with HK$145.2 million repayable
within one year, HK$31.2 million in the second year,
HK$211.2 million in the third to fourth year.

The management believes that the existing financial
resources will be sufficient to meet existing operations
as well as existing and future expansion plans and, if
necessary, the Group will be able to obtain additional
financing with favourable terms. There is no material effect
of seasonality on the Group’s borrowing requirements.

Gearing ratio of the Group is defined as the net debt
(represented by bank borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) divided by shareholders’ equity. As at 31 March
2013, the Group's gearing ratios is 6.9% (31 March 2012:
4.4%).

Foreign Exchange Risk Management
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from substantial portion of sales or
purchases by operating units in US dollars and RMB. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the
exposure of US dollars and RMB. As the foreign currency
risks generated from the sales and purchases can be set
off with each other, the Group believes its exposure to
exchange rate risk is minimal. It is the policy of the Group to
continue maintaining the balance of its sales and purchases
in the same currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors the
foreign exchange exposures and will consider hedging the
significant foreign currency exposures should any need
arises.

Significant Investments
As at 31 March 2013, there was no significant investment
held by the Group (31 March 2012: Nil).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and associated companies during the year ended 31 March
2013 (2012: Nil).
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Financial and Operation Review (continued)

Contingent Liabilities and Capital
Commitments

As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (31 March 2012: Nil). The Group had the
following capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period:

As at As at
<HRVEIGWE 31 March
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
Contracted, but not provided for:
Construction of factories and
purchases of machinery and
equipment for the investment
in Jiangxi Province, the PRC (the
"Jiangxi Project”) 35,225
Renovation of factories for
the investment in Indonesia 18,507
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment 1,113
Renovation of factories 233
55,078
Authorised, but not contracted for:
Investment in the Jiangxi Project 51,747

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's banking facilities were
secured by the corporate guarantees executed by the
Company and a subsidiary of the Company to the extent of
HK$316,000,000 (31 March 2012: HK$356,000,000) of which
an aggregate amount of HK$155,966,000 was utilised.

Employees and Remuneration Policies
As at 31 March 2013, the Group employed a total of
approximately 10,000 employees including directors (31
March 2012: approximately 10,000). Total employee benefits
expenses including directors” emoluments were HK$371.0
million for the year under review (2012: HK$326.1 million).

The employees including directors are remunerated based
on their work performance, professional experiences and
the prevailing industry practice. The Group also makes
contributions to the statutory mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme for the employees of the Group in Hong Kong and
to the central pension scheme for the employees of the
Group in the PRC.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies

Executive Directors

Chung Yuk Sing, aged 52, has been the Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company since October 2002. He is
the founder of the Group and a director of other members
of the Group. Mr. Chung provides leadership to the Board
and is responsible for corporate development. He has been
accredited as “Honorary Citizen of Shantou City” in the
PRC. Mr. Chung holds several public positions, including the
Honorary President of Shantou Overseas Sodality, Honorary
President of Shantou Overseas Communication Association
and Honorary President of Social Security and Welfare
Association of Lunghu, Shantou City. Mr. Chung has over
20 years of manufacturing and management experience in
garment industry.

Chen Hsiao Ying, aged 49, has joined the Group as
Executive Director since October 2007. He was Chief
Executive Officer of the Company from October 2007 to June
2013. He is also a director of other members of the Group.
Mr. Chen had worked as Factory Manager in a sportswear
manufacturing and trading company in Taiwan since 1981
prior to founding Actex Garment Co., Limited, a company
specializing in the manufacturing and trading of sportswear,
in 1997. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of manufacturing and
management experience in the garment industry. He is in
charge of the corporate strategy, management, business
development and manufacturing management of the Group.
He is a brother of Ms. Chen Li Ying, a member of senior
management of the Group.

Kuo Tai Yu, aged 63, has joined the Group as Executive
Director of the Company since April 2004. Mr. Kuo has over
30 years of experience in management of footwear business
in Taiwan. He received a bachelor's degree from Chung
Hsing University in Taiwan. Mr. Kuo has been the director of
certain companies within the Group of Yue Yuen Industrial
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 00551) (“Yue Yuen”), a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the director
of Pou Chen Corporation (“Pou Chen”), a company listed on
the stock exchange of Taiwan. He is currently the executive
director of Yue Yuen and general manager of the garment
department in charge of development and integration of
garment manufacturing.

Chen Fang Mei, Christina, aged 50, has joined the
Group as Executive Director of the Company since May
2009. She has been the Spokesperson and Vice President
of Pou Chen since 2004. She graduated from Soochow
University in Taiwan in 1986 and holds a Bachelor's Degree
in International Business. Ms. Chen was Vice President and
Head of Underwriting of Citibank Securities (Taiwan) Limited
from 2001 to 2004. She has over 20 years of experience
in the investment and securities industries in Taiwan. Ms.
Chen is an executive director of Symphony Holdings Limited
(stock code: 01223), a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Chan Cheuk Ho, aged 46, obtained a master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Manchester
in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has more than
20 years of experience in accounting and finance. He is the
company secretary and chief financial officer of North Asia
Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 00061), a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He has
been Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since November 2002.

Lu Chi Chant, aged 61, is currently an independent
director of First Sino Bank (FF B —3$E77). He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering from National
Taiwan University in 1974 and passed the professional
qualification examinations in Taiwan for certified public
accountant in 1983 and for securities investment analyst in
1988. During the period from 1976 to 1984, Mr. Lu worked
as a mechanical engineer in Formosa Plastics Corporation,
a company established in Taiwan principally engaged in
the manufacturing of plastics raw materials and products.
He joined Deloitte & Touche Taiwan as an auditor in 1984
and where he became a partner in 1986. Mr. Lu left Deloitte
& Touche Taiwan in 2011 and joined First Sino Bank (4
B #=—3R77), a licensed bank established in the PRC, as
an independent director until now. He was appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
February 2013.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies (continued)

Li Chi Chung, aged 44, is currently a solicitor practising
in Hong Kong. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws
from The University of Sheffield in England in 1990. He was
admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in
1993 and his practice has been focused on commercial
related matters. Mr. Li is an independent non-executive
director of Kenford Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
00464) and PINE Technology Holdings Limited (stock code:
01079), which are companies listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. He is the company secretary of China
Financial International Investments Limited (stock code:
00721) and China Environmental Investment Holdings
Limited (stock code: 00260), all of which are companies
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and China
Nonferrous Metals Company Limited (stock code: 08306)
which is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange. He was Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company from November 2002 to February
2013.

Cheng Yung Hui, Tony, aged 71, is the chairman and chief
executive officer of World Friendship Company Limited.
Mr. Cheng has over 30 years of experience in operating his
own company. He has extensive experience in international
business. He has been Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September 2004.

Senior Management

Chang Wen Hsiang, aged 62, joined the Group as Chief
Financial Officer in February 2008 and was appointed
as Executive Director of the Company in April 2008. He
resigned as Executive Director of the Company in May
2009 but remained as Chief Financial Officer of the Group
up to June 2013. He is also a director of other members of
the Group. He holds bachelor’s and master’s degrees in
accounting from the National Chen Chi University in Taiwan
and was accredited Certified Public Accountant from the
USA. Mr. Chang was the financial controller and general
manager of a US-based multinational corporation in US’s
headquarter and Taiwan'’s subsidiary before he joined Yue
Yuen in 1993. Mr. Chang was responsible for certain PRC,
Taiwan and Vietnam business development projects in
Yue Yuen before he left as Senior Executive Manager after
10 years of service there. Mr. Chang has over 30 years
of experience in the manufacturing of shoes, apparel,
optical and luggage and was an independent financial and
operational consultant to pre-listing companies before he
joined the Group.

Tsang Sau Fan, aged 46, has joined the Group since
March 1996 and was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in October 2002. She resigned as Executive
Director of the Company in May 2009. Currently, she
is General Manager of Division | of the Group and is
responsible for sales and marketing and administration
management of Division | of the Group. She has over 20
years of experience in sales of garment products. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked as a merchandiser in a
garment manufacturing company in Hong Kong.

Chen Li Ying, aged 58, has joined the Group as Executive
Director of the Company since October 2007 and resigned as
Executive Director of the Company in May 2009. Currently,
she is General Manager of Division Il of the Group and is
responsible for sales and marketing and manufacturing
management of Division Il of the Group. She is also a
director of other members of the Group. She graduated
from Ming Chuan University in Taiwan and had worked
as an auditor in an accounting firm in Taiwan for around
5 years after graduation. She worked in the sales and
marketing department of a sportswear manufacturing and
trading company in Taiwan from 1981 to 1996 before she
joined Actex Garment Co., Limited, a company founded
by Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying, in 2001. She has over 25 years of
manufacturing and management experience in the garment
industry. She is a sister of Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying, an Executive
Director of the Company.

Woo Man Chi, aged 41, has joined the Group as
Financial Controller since May 2005 and was appointed as
Company Secretary of the Group in September 2005. She
is responsible for the accounting, finance and compliance
related functions of the Group. She previously worked in
a reputable international accounting firm, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, in Hong Kong for five years. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked in a manufacturing company listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange as Assistant Financial
Controller. She has more than 15 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Ms. Woo holds
a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. She is a practising
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 18 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 64 to 128.

An interim dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary share was paid on 19 December 2012. The Directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the register of members on 29
August 2013. Details are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

summary financial information
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements is set out below.

Results
Year ended 31 March
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue 1,443,994 1,445,968 1,164,762 1,061,179 1,070,975
Profit before tax 94,532 152,476 158,965 179,305 184,236
Income tax expense (21,568) (32,148) (27,633) (29,396) (21,107)

Profit for the year 72,964 120,328 131,332 149,909 163,129
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Ssummary financial information (continued)

Assets and liabilities

As at 31 March
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current assets 1,057,385 943,679 693,476 432,617 396,104

Current assets 745,403 793,033 472,802 637,928 632,378
Current liabilities (607,638) (632,731) (185,764) (151,255) (139,906)

Net current assets 137,765 160,302 287,038 486,673 492,472

Non-current liabilities (52,671) (35,119) (30,205) (24,124) (16,798)

1,142,479 1,068,862 950,309 895,166 871,778

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

Share capital
There was ho movements in either the authorised or issued share capital of the Company during the year.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Distributable reserves

At 31 March 2013, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$672,776,000. The amount of HK$672,776,000 includes the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve of HK$515,674,000 in aggregate at 31 March 2013, which may be
distributed provided that immediately following the date on which a dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Major customers and suppliers
In the year under review, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 91.7% of the Group'’s total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 52.0%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 42.5% of the Group's total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately 16.3%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own

more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.

Directors
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chung Yuk Sing (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu

Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho

Mr. Li Chi Chung (resigned with effect from 28 February 2013)
Mr. Lu Chi Chant (appointed with effect from 28 February 2013)
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony

Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying has tendered his resignation as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 30 June
2013, but will remain as an executive director of the Company.

In accordance with article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Chung Yuk Sing and Ms. Chen Fang Mei,
Christina will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Pursuant to article 86(3) of the Company's articles of association, Mr. Lu Chi Chant, being an independent non-executive
Director appointed with effect from 28 February 2013, shall hold office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting
and he, being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho, Mr. Lu Chi Chant and Mr. Cheng

Yung Hui, Tony, and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and senior management’'s biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 14 of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors’ service contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

Directors’ remuneration

The power of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) to determine the Director’s remuneration is subject to shareholders’
approval at the annual general meeting of the Company, the amount which will be determined with reference to Director’s
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ interests in contracts
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive in the share capital and underlying
shares and debentures of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), which have been notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any such Directors or chief executive were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”), were as follows:

The Company

Percentage of

Number of shares held the Company’s

Name of Director Capacity Long position Short position issued capital

Mr. Chung Yuk Sing Interest of a controlled corporation 72,650,000 - 14.54
(Note)

Beneficial owner 200,000 - 0.04

Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying Beneficial owner 25,328,800 - 5.07

Mr. Kuo Tai Yu Beneficial owner 1,450,000 - 0.29

Note:  These shares are held by Time Easy Investment Holdings Limited (“Time Easy”). The entire issued share capital of Time Easy is held by Mr.
Chung Yuk Sing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors and chief executive had registered an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Share option scheme

Since 6 August 2003, the Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme whereby eligible participants of the
share option scheme, including any employee (whether full-time or part-time) and any director of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries whom the Board may think fit with reference to their respective contributions to the Group, may be granted
options which entitle them to subscribe for the shares of the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2013, no share options have been granted under the share option scheme.

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the following persons, other than the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of Percentage of

ordinary shares held the Company’s

Name Capacity Long position Short position issued capital

Time Easy Beneficial owner 72,650,000 - 14.54
(Note 1)

Pou Chen Corporation (‘PCC") Interest in a controlled corporation 192,000,000 - 38.42
(Note 2)

Wealthplus Holdings Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 192,000,000 - 38.42
("Wealthplus”) (Note 2)

Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings)  Interest in a controlled corporation 192,000,000 - 38.42
Limited (“Yue Yuen”) (Note 2)

Pou Hing Industrial Co. Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 192,000,000 - 38.42
("Pou Hing") (Note 2)

Great Pacific Investments Beneficial owner 192,000,000 - 38.42
Limited (“Great Pacific”) (Note 2)

Delta Lloyd Asset Beneficial owner 29,986,000 - 6.00

Management NV
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares (continued)

Notes:
1. The entire issued share capital of Time Easy is held by Mr. Chung Yuk Sing.
2. The 192,000,000 shares were held by Great Pacific which was wholly-owned by Pou Hing. The entire issued share capital of Pou Hing was

held by Yue Yuen in which Wealthplus and Win Fortune Investment Ltd. (“Win Fortune”) held an interest of 46.89% and 3.09% respectively.
Wealthplus and Win Fortune are in turn wholly-owned by PCC. Accordingly, Pou Hing, Yue Yuen, Wealthplus, Win Fortune and PCC are all
deemed to be interested in the 192,000,000 shares held by Great Pacific.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, no person, other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company,
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’” and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of public float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Directors’ interests in a competing business
Interest of the Directors in a competing business required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) is as follows:

Nature of

Name of Director Name of company competing business Nature of interest Appointment date
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Yuen Thai Industrial Company Limited ~ Garment manufacturing — As a director July 2009

Christina (“Ms. Chen") (“Yuen Thai") (Note 1)
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu (“Mr. Kuo") Yue Yuen (Note 2) Garment manufacturing  As a general manager December 2012
Ms. Chen Din Tsun Holding Co., Ltd. Garment manufacturing  As a director April 2011
Mr. Kuo ("Din Tsun") (Note 3) As a director April 2013
Ms. Chen Faith Year Investments Limited Garment manufacturing  As a director August 2010
Mr. Kuo (“Faith Year") (Note 3) As a director April 2013
Ms. Chen Pro Kingtex Industrial Co., (HK) Ltd. Garment manufacturing  As a director August 2010
Mr. Kuo ("Pro Kingtex") (Note 3) As a director April 2013

Note 1: Yuen Thai is a company incorporated in Hong Kong on 24 September 2003 and is held as to 50% by Yue Yuen and
its subsidiaries (the “Yue Yuen Group”) and 50% by a subsidiary of Luen Thai Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange since 2004. Ms. Chen was nominated to the board of directors of Yuen Thai to represent the
interest of the Yue Yuen Group in July 2009. On 28 May 2012, Ms. Chen resigned as director of Yuen Thai.

Having considered (i) the nature, geographical market, scope and size of Yuen Thai as compared to those of the
Group; and (i) the nature and extent of Ms. Chen’s interest in Yuen Thai, the Directors believe that there is unlikely
to be any significant competition caused to the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors’ interests in a competing business (continued)

Note 2. Yue Yuen is a company listed on the Stock Exchange and is a substantial shareholder of the Company. The principal
business activities of Yue Yuen Group are manufacturing and sales of footwear products, and retail and distribution
of sportswear products. Based on the published annual report of Yue Yuen, Yue Yuen recorded total revenue of
more than US$7 billion for its footwear manufacturing business in the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012. As
the Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of sportswear and garments, the businesses of
Yue Yuen Group and the Group potentially compete with each other.

Given that Yue Yuen Group and the Group are operated by different and separate management team, the Directors
consider that the Company is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arms length with Yue
Yuen Group. Having considered the nature and extent of Mr. Kuo's participation in business of Yue Yuen Group and
the Group, the Directors believe that there is unlikely to be any significant competition caused to the business of
the Group.

Note 3: Din Tsun is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 4 January 2005 and is held as to 50% by Yue
Yuen Group and 50% by two individuals. Din Tsun and Yue Yuen Group hold 70% and 30% of the issued share
capital of Faith Year respectively which in turn wholly-owns Pro Kingtex. Din Tsun and its subsidiaries are investee
companies of the Yue Yuen Group. The principal business activities of Din Tsun and its operating subsidiaries
including Pro Kingtex are apparel manufacturing of sportswear, casual and outdoor clothes. Based on information
provided by Din Tsun, it and its subsidiaries recorded over US$200 million in revenue for the 15 months ended 31
December 2012. Both Ms. Chen and Mr. Kuo have been nominated to the board of directors of Din Tsun, Faith Year
and Pro Kingtex to represent the interest of the Yue Yuen Group as an investor.

While Ms. Chen is not involved in the operation of Din Tsun and its subsidiaries including Pro Kingtex, Mr. Kuo
participates in the apparel manufacturing business of Din Tsun and its subsidiaries. Mr. Kuo has confirmed that
he is mindful of his duty to avoid conflict of interest. In cases where conflict of interest situation arises, Mr. Kuo
will refrain from taking part in the decision making process and will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution
in board meeting. On this basis and given that the subsidiaries of Din Tsun including Pro Kingtex have its own
management personnel other than Mr. Kuo and that Ms. Chen is not involved in their operations, the Directors
believe that the Company is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arms length from Ding Tsun
and its subsidiaries including Pro Kingtex.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in, apart from the Group’s
business, any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Corporate governance

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the accounting period covered by the annual report, except
for certain deviations. For further information on the Company’s corporate governance practices and details of deviations,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of the annual report.

Auditors
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution of their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chung Yuk Sing
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence. The Company had, throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
except for the deviations specified with considered reasons for such deviation as explained in this corporate governance

report.

1. DIRECTORS

a.

Composition & Meetings

The composition of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and the individual attendance of
each director of the Company (the “Director”) at board and general meetings during the year under review
are set out as follows:

Number of Number of
board general
Changes in directorships meetings meeting
Name of Director during the year attended/held attended/held
Executive Directors
Chung Yuk Sing (Chairman) 10/10 171
Chen Hsiao Ying (Chief Executive 9/9 0/1
Officer)
Kuo Tai Yu 9/9 11
Chen Fang Mei, Christina 9/9 171
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Chan Cheuk Ho 7/10 01
Li Chi Chung (resigned with effect from 6/9 171
28 February 2013)
Lu Chi Chant (appointed with effect from 11 0/0
28 February 2013)
Cheng Yung Hui, Tony 7/10 171

Biographical details of all Directors are disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management'’s
Biographies” in this annual report. To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships amongst members of the Board.

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates, among other things, that the independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings. An independent non-executive
director did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 August 2012 due to his other
commitments.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

At least one of the independent non-executive directors of the Company ("INEDS”) has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules. The Group has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Group considered all of the INEDs to be independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1. DIRECTORS (continued)
C. Responsibility of the Board and Delegation by the Board
The Board has the collective responsibility for leadership and control of, and for promoting the success of,
the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board is responsible for determining the
overall strategy and corporate development and ensuring the business operations are properly monitored.
The Board reserves the right to decide all policy matters of the Group and material transactions.

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general managers and department heads who are
responsible for different aspects of the operations of the Group.

d. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
During the year under review, the Group segregated the role of the Chairman from the Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Chung Yuk Sing (“Mr. Chung") was the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying was
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. There is no relationship other than business relationship between
them. The Chairman provides leadership to the Board and is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
corporate development, whereas the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day management,
policy making and corporate management functions as well as formulating strategies for the Group.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2013, Mr. Chung was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 30 June 2013. Since Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual, following the appointment of Mr. Chung as the chief executive officer of the Company, there will
be a deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code by the Company from 30 June 2013.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, the Board considers that the present structure will not impair the
balance of power and authority between the Board and the management of the Group as the Board assumes
collective responsibility on the decision-making process of the Company’s business strategies and operation.
The principal divisions of the Group’s businesses are managed by different Directors.

e. Appointment, re-election and removal
Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any Directors appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board) and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

f. Non-Executive Directors
During the year under review, all INEDs have been appointed for a specific term of service but they are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election.

g.  Directors’ Securities Transactions
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

h. Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against its
Directors and officers.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1.

DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuing professional development

Directors must develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and keep abreast of the latest changes in the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a
listed company. The Group also provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills. The Group continuously updates Directors on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are issued to Directors and
senior management to ensure awareness of corporate governance practices.

During the year under review, the Directors participated in the following trainings:

Type of
Trainings
(Notes)
Executive Directors
Chung Yuk Sing AC
Chen Hsiao Ying AC
Kuo Tai Yu AC
Chen Fang Mei, Christina AC
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Chan Cheuk Ho B,.C
Li Chi Chung (resigned with effect from 28 February 2013) B,C
Lu Chi Chant (appointed with effect from 28 February 2013) A,C
Cheng Yung Hui, Tony AC
Notes:
A attending training session arranged by the Company
B: attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums
C: reading newspapers/journals and updates relating to their profession and director’s responsibilities

Supply of and access to information

In respect of regular board meetings, an agenda and accompanying board papers of the meeting are sent in
full to all Directors at least 14 days before the intended date of the meeting. For all other board meetings, at
least 3 days' notice are given before the intended date of the meeting.

The management has an obligation to supply the Board and the various Committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the members to make informed decisions. Each Director has
separate and independent access to the Group’s management to acquire more information and to make
further enquiries if necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1. DIRECTORS (continued)
k. Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company'’s affairs. During the year under review, the Company Secretary has complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

2. BOARD COMMITTEES
a. Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director, namely, Mr. Chung Yuk Sing and two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho and Mr. Lu Chi Chant who replaced Mr. Li Chi Chung following his resignation
with effect from 28 February 2013. Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering and approving the remuneration plans and
policies for all the Directors and the senior management of the Group by reference to the Company’s
operation results, individual performance and prevailing market rate. The Company has adopted the model
whereby the Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Director and senior management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
in line with the code provisions of the CG Code and are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During the year under review, three committee
meetings were held to review the remuneration packages and policy of all Directors and the senior
management of the Group; and the terms of service contract of a new INED. The attendance of individual
member of the Remuneration Committee at the meeting is set out below:

Number of

meetings

Committee Members attended/held
Chan Cheuk Ho (Chairman) 3/3
Chung Yuk Sing 3/3
Li Chi Chung (ceased to be a member on 28 February 2013) 2/2

Lu Chi Chant (became a member on 28 February 2013) 11
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

2.

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

b.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of all three INEDs, namely, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho, Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony and
Mr. Lu Chi Chant who replaced Mr. Li Chi Chung following his resignation with effect from 28 February 2013.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho who possesses recognised professional qualifications
in accounting and has rich experience in audit and finance. The terms of reference of the committee are
in line with the code provisions of the CG Code and are available on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Ccompany’s website.

The Audit Committee’s principal duties include:
)} overseeing the relationship with the Company’s external auditors;
ii) reviewing the financial information of the Group; and

iii) reviewing and monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures.

To comply with the requirements under the CG Code in respect of the responsibilities for performing
the corporate governance duties, the Board has delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee to
develop, review and monitor the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations to the Board; to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on the legal and
regulatory compliance; to review and monitor the code of conduct and ethical behaviour applicable to the
Directors and employees and the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the corporate
governance report.

The committee meets at least twice every year and additional meetings may be convened by the chairman
of the committee as and when necessary. During the year under review, the Audit Committee met four times
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, to ensure compliance with relevant
rules and regulations, to review the Company’s policies on corporate governance and to discuss internal
controls and financial reporting matters. This include the review of 2012 final results and 2013 interim results
of the Group; and discussion with external auditors relating to accounting and internal control issues, and
major findings in the course of audit. The attendance of individual member of the Audit Committee at the
meeting is set out below:

Number of

meetings

Committee Members attended/held
Chan Cheuk Ho (Chairman) 4/4
Cheng Yung Hui, Tony 4/4
Li Chi Chung (ceased to be a member on 28 February 2013) 2/2

Lu Chi Chant (became a member on 28 February 2013) 2/2
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2. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
C. Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, namely, Mr. Chung Yuk Sing and two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho and Mr. Lu Chi Chant, who replaced Mr. Li Chi Chung following his resignation
with effect from 28 February 2013. Mr. Chung Yuk Sing is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
terms of reference of the committee are in line with the code provisions of the CG Code and are available on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company'’s website.

The Nomination Committee’s principal duties include:

(i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and recommending any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) identifying individuals who are suitably qualified to become Board members; and
(ifi) assess the independence of the INEDs.

The committee meets at least once every year and additional meetings may be convened by the chairman
of the committee as and when necessary. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Nomination Committee
met twice to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and to make recommendation to the
Board the appointment of a new INED. The attendance of individual member of the Nomination Committee at
the meeting is set out below:

Number of

meetings

Committee Members attended/held
Chung Yuk Sing (Chairman) 2/2
Chan Cheuk Ho 2/2
Li Chi Chung (ceased to be a member on 28 February 2013) 01
Lu Chi Chant (became a member on 28 February 2013) 11

3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
a. Financial Reporting
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
S0 that the Board has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young, are set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on page 30 to 31 of the annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

b.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group's internal control system and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and
effective in providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets and identification of
business risks. The Group has implemented a practical and effective control system which includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system and periodic review of
the Group’s performance by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board is of the view that the internal
control system adopted for the year ended 31 March 2013 is sound and effective to safeguard the interests of
the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.

Auditors’ Remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2013, the fee paid/payable to the Group’s auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as

follows: -

Amount of fee

Services rendered paid/payable
HK$'000

Audit services 2,223
Non-audit services 235
2,458

4. SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

a.

Procedures for shareholders to convene extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (“EGM")

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company'’s articles of association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company can make a written requisition to the Board or the Company secretary
to convene an EGM. The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the Investor
Relations Director and deposit at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
ir@eaglenice.com.hk.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting

Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene an EGM for any business specified in such
written requisition or the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director which is
available on the Company’s website.
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5. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy in March 2012. The primary communication
channel between the Company and its shareholders is through the publication of announcements, circulars, interim
and annual reports, which are available on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website.

The Company’s annual general meeting acts as a useful platform for direct communication between the shareholders
and the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company in respect of voting by poll and other related matters.

6. INVESTOR RELATIONS
At annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 August 2012, the Company has adopted the amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association which consolidated all of the proposed amendments set out in
the notice thereof and all previous amendments made pursuant to resolutions passed by the shareholders of the
Company at general meetings bringing the memorandum and articles of association of the Company in line with
certain changes to the Listing Rules and to conform with the applicable laws in substitution for and to the exclusion
of the existing memorandum and articles of association of the Company. An updated version of the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

On behalf of the Board

Chung Yuk Sing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= K

To the shareholders of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 128, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2013
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Cconsolidated Income Statement
GAalEE

(Year ended 31 March 2013)
(BE=—Z—=F=-A=1+—BHIFE)

Notes 2013 2012
BIsE —E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
REVENUE EEWA 5 1,443,994 1,445,968
Cost of sales $HE A (1,194,143) (1,148,891)
Gross profit EF 249,851 297,077
Other income and gains E U A Rz 5 4,607 8,853
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HEAX (16,692) (17,514)
Administrative expenses TR S (136,995) (131,370)
Finance costs BhE AN 6 (6,239) (4,570)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREL AR 7 94,532 152,476
Income tax expense SR 10 (21,568) (32,148)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 742 Rl#EA A EIGEE SR
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY N 72,964 120,328
HK cents HK cents
B4l Bl
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A& T#HEE AEWL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BRER 13
Basic HK 14.6 241
Diluted e 14.6 241

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial  BREFFIEHMEHEHREME12 o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GAEEERER

(Year ended 31 March 2013)
(BE-T—=F=A=+—HILFE)

Note 2013 2012
BIsE —ZE-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEREF 72,964 120,328
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hib2mEUk
INCOME/(EXPENSE) (ZH)
Revaluation surplus on leasehold HETHREF 2 EHAHK
land and buildings 14 105,278 19,820
Income tax effect Fisfige (24,663) (4,368)
80,615 15,452
Exchange differences on translation of WEIBINES 2[R =58
foreign operations (10,006) 32,741
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEHMEEmWRE -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX B HIRRBIE 70,609 48,193
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AATRHEBEAEREEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 2EWNEAEE

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 143,573 168,521
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A BN R

(31 March 2013)
(ZE—=F=A=+—H)

Notes 2013 2012
BaE —E2-=F T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE N &E 14 955,144 828,418
Prepaid land lease payments Taft L EFRIE 15 76,129 78,470
Deposits " 16 - 10,679
Goodwill EES 17 26,112 26,112
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 1,057,385 943,679
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories 7E 19 229,730 244,961
Accounts and bills receivables FEUER R R iR 20 184,004 141,955
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE1T3IE - 24 R E A fE YR 1E 16 22,317 34,131
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEEE 21 309,352 371,986
Total current assets MEEERE 745,403 793,033
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts and bills payables FERTBR R 2 22 108,820 103,364
Accrued liabilities and other payables JEETAE R MR FRIE 24 96,469 80,845
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRITER 25 387,646 418,896
Tax payable FEA R IE 14,703 29,626
Total current liabilities mERERE 607,638 632,731
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFRE 137,765 160,302
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELAENRRBESE
LIABILITIES 1,195,150 1,103,981
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIEE F 26 52,671 35,119
Net assets BEEE 1,142,479 1,068,862
EQUITY BR
Equity attributable to owners AATREE AELER
of the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 27 4,997 4,997
Reserves (it 29 1,137,482 1,063,865
Total equity BRMEE 1,142,479 1,068,862
CHUNG YUK SING CHEN HSIAO YING
EEFH B /NEs
Director Director

BE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEERBBE
eERE

(Year ended 31 March 2013)
(BE—Z—=F=-A=1+—HILFEE)

Share Statutory  Exchange Asset
Issued  premium Capital surplus fluctuation revaluation  Retained
Note capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BB R EE Ex BE
(i A REE EfRE  BRHREE  RBRE ERNRE  BREA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHT TAL FET TAL FAT TAT FAL TAT
(Note 29)  (Note 29)
(M3E29)  (W&29)
At 1 April 2011 RZF——FNA—-A 4,997 472,586 (229) 15,103 79,407 31,069 347,376 950,309
Profit for the year FEHA - - - - - - 120,328 120,328
Other comprehensive income  FEHM2ENE
for the year:
Revaluation surplus on MEHHRIEF
leasehold land and buildings, ~ Z Efh R -
net of tax EMRHE - - - - - 15,452 - 15,452
Exchange differences on WEENEBZ
translation of foreign EfzS
operations - - - - 32,74 - - 32,74
Total comprehensive income  EF A EE
for the year - - - - 32,741 15,452 120,328 168,521
Transfer to reserve BEREERE - - - 2432 - - (2,432) -
Final 2011 dividend declared ~ EER-ZT——4%HKE 12 - - - - - - (14,990) (14,990)
Interim 2012 dividend “E-CERHRs 12 - - - - - - (34,978) (34,978)
At 31 March 2012 “E-—F-A=1-H 4,997 472,586* (229)* 17,535* 112,148* 46,521* 415,304* 1,068,862
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FMNA—H 4,997 472,586 (229) 17,535 112,148 46,521 415,304 1,068,862
Profit for the year FERR - - - - - - 72,964 72,964
Other comprehensive income  FEEM2EMNE
for the year:
Revaluation surplus on HELHRETF
leasehold land and buildings, — Z Efh & -
net of tax [RETE - - - - - 80,615 - 80,615
Exchange differences on FTEENEBZ
translation of foreign ERzS
operations - - - - (10,006) - - (10,006)
Total comprehensive income  FE2AEKFEE
for the year - - - - (10,006) 80,615 72,964 143,573
Transfer to reserve BREERE - - - 16213 - - (16,213) -
Final 2012 dividend declared ~ BER=-Z——4XHKEs 12 - - - - - - (34,978) (34,978)
Interim 2013 dividend “E-ZFPERE 12 - - - - - - (34,978) (34,978)
At 31 March 2013 “F-ZFZR=1-H 4,997 472,586* (229)% 33,748* 102,142* 127,136* 402,099* 1,142,479
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBRBREINGRE FIER R NERE B

HK$1,137,482,000 (2012: HK$1,063,865,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

1,137,482,0007 7T ( =Z — =4 : 1,063,865,0007%%
T e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ IE’%/)ILE%

(Year ended 31 March 2013)
(BE-T—=F=A=+—HILFE)

Notes 2013 2012
BiEE —E-= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fix FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBELCEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRB A8 94,532 152,476
Adjustments for: LA IE B JE -
Finance costs REE PR 6 6,239 4,570
Bank interest income HRITHEMA 5 (2,897) (3,933)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE - BE K
plant and equipment RAEIEE 2 W 5 - (181)
Write-off of items of property, MM - BB &
plant and equipment HHEEE 7 - 2
Reversal of a revaluation deficit EEEE TR
on leasehold land and buildings BFEHEE 5 - (3,886)
Depreciation e 7 61,833 41,800
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR T AR & SR IEEE IR
payments 7 2,327 2,267
162,034 193,115
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (M) 15,231 (52,712)
Increase in accounts and bills receivables  FEURBR R K Z B 1% N (42,049) (60,601)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TENFIE « e REAER
deposits and other receivables FIERF (35 0) 11,828 (17,716)
Increase in accounts and bills payables FERBR R R ZEZ 1800 5,456 29,536
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities EEt B E N EAEN A
and other payables i CRd) 15,624 (13,319)
Cash generated from operations BEEE RS 168,124 78,303
Interest paid 2FE (6,239) (4,570)
Dividends paid ERRE (69,956) (49,968)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNEH (27,753) (17,577)
Overseas tax paid EEINMRIA (15,849) (3,030)
Net cash flows from operating activities RELEXEG R REFE 48,327 3,164
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHELEZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEW% - WE LB EEE
plant and equipment, net PSSR IEFE - 360
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BER
plant and equipment HBIEE (79,637) (246,822)
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged BARTEIHABB=EA
deposits with original maturity of ZIEEHEFR
over three months when acquired B () 21 30,162 (30,162)
Interest received BEUFILE 2,897 3,933
Net cash flows used in investing activities ~ FREEETH IR R EFE (46,578) (272,691)




Statement of Cash FIOWS (continued)

HWERhaRE)

(Year ended 31 March 2013)
(BE=Z—=F=A=1t—HILFE)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES

New bank loans FRITER

Repayment of bank loans EEBITER

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing wE,/ (AR REEE
activities Rene®E

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BERBEESEHEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #hn,/ (Rd) FE

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYzHe kR EEER
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net & &) 222 %g

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2EASRBESZEER
AT END OF YEAR
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REREESEEERZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERRDT
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTEF
Non-pledged time deposits with original fBAREREH
maturity of less than three months DPR=EAZ
when acquired FEE HE BT AR
Non-pledged time deposits with original fBAREREH
maturity of more than three months FEm={EH 2
when acquired FEE HE BT AR

Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe 4R & BRI RABAREIR S &
consolidated statement of financial position IR &%(EER

Non-pledged time deposits with original BARTIHEABS
maturity of more than three months = &Rz FEH
when acquired REEGER

Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe 4FARERERBERNIRES R
consolidated statement of cash flows ReFEER

—Z—=%4%3% Annual Report 2013

Notes
B aE

21

21

21

21

2012
—E——4F
HK$'000
FET

644,600
(225,704)

418,896

149,369

183,037

9,418

341,824

175,583

166,241

30,162

371,986

(30,162)

341,824
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Statement of Financial Position

FEAR AR

(31 March 2013)
(ZF—=%=A=+—8H)

Notes 2013 2012
BIsE —E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIE 18 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEURHTIE N BIFIE 18 1,048,576 868,946
Loan to a subsidiary LTHWBATZEHR 18 234,000 249,000
Prepayments TEffFA 16 137 138
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRE&EEEAER 21 10,618 369
Total current assets MEEERE 1,293,331 1,118,453
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENIEE
Due to subsidiaries FEHT B A R FIE 18 424,023 359,664
Accrued liabilities fErraE 24 - 157
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTBERITER 25 234,000 234,000
Tax payable FERTFRIR 903 -
Total current liabilities mEAERTE 658,926 593,821
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 634,405 524,632
Net assets BERE 677,773 568,000
EQUITY B
Issued capital BEITIRA 27 4,997 4,997
Reserves HE 29 672,776 563,003
Total equity RN 677,773 568,000

CHUNG YUK SING

EEH
Director
EZE

CHEN HSIAO YING

CUN 7

Director

EZE
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to Financial Statements

BN

(31 March 2013)
(ZZ—=F=A=+—8)

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The principal place of business
of the Company is located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906,
9/F, Tower B, Regent Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Group's principal activities are the manufacture and trading
of sportswear and garments.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASS") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for leasehold land and
buildings classified as property, plant and equipment, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

Total comprehensive result within a subsidiary is attributed to
the non-controlling interest even it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or 10ss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

ARRABRASHEFMKIZBERA
A) o A B R Hb Ak A& Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman
Islands © ANAE) 2 £ EEEMET N ES
TREBITENE70R B R T OBENE
0902-0903 % £20905-0906 %

giZEE%%%E%&EEE@HE&

WEMBRRDBERATESAMAE
B EAYBREER (BB B R
SHA ) (EPBEMEEEV RS E
8] - EEGHEA([EHBEER]) M2
B) BALARGTRAUREBQRGM
ZWERERST] - REAME - BB MR
BRI 2 HE L MBEF AR FEFE
S - It B S R R AR IR E 2 PN AR AR
# o BB BN - BB IRRIGAE T
(DB 25 MABEEHNEAAZE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B S ER MR (&)

(31 March 2013)
(ZZ—=F=fA=+—18)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policy and
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments. Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans?

HKFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 10 consolidated Financial Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities®
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
and HKFRS 12 11 and HKFRS 12 - Transition
Amendments Guidance?

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011) and HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment
Amendments Entities®

2.2

2.3

EHEERRERE

REBRAE E P RE B RFAA T
CHES =R

FRUBRE BEVBHHRESEREIR
ZERF15R B AR BB HE

12T B - RESERLS
BB VIR EEES
B2 58]
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ZERF 75 EHTA : JE—EE
ER] EMEEZIER
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SF2R/IERT B AEEHE KA

FEEZIER]

KA ERET R BN RE E AL EE
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EEMAERERZEBMER
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NG B I MR L B A SRR ER A T B AR A
BRERR ] RIS ET BB S
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2.3

Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 36 Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements —
Presentation of Iltems of Other
Comprehensive Income’

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

Levies®

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in June 20122

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSS upon initial application
and is not yet in a position to state whether they would have
a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and

financial position.
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are
not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or 10ss is recognised in
profit or 10ss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or 10ss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment |oss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the disposed operation and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such impairment loss is credited to the income statement
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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to Financial Statements (continued)

RIRMIEE )

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

0]

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

—Z—=%4%3% Annual Report 2013

BAEAL
ETHIBRT  AHRALRARLEE
ARE

(@) BRALRZALZEREE
%% AL

0] PRI ER I AL E
(i HAKBEEATE + X

iy AREAEELAEEFLRE

TEEEEKE
4
b ABALATEEA T AGEN
HEE
0] BN 5% B [A] —MEI&
BRFNE
(if) BEEAS—HE(ES
BERZER T LI
CIRNCESI = NI
RASAZEEEN—HE
B
(i EAKERR/BRE=T
MAERRNER

(iv) —HERBAE=7EEN
BELE MmE— *Ek

FZE=TTERNEENE]

V) HRERAAEELRAS
BB B A0 B FI3
R 2 B R B
SEEIN

Vi) ZERARE@EBEMMEALE
ek A A KRS &

(i)  @OEFTILALTHZER
BERFENRBZEE
(HZEEHERF)EE
EEASB -



Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &3 (BB )ERER 2 7

to Financial Statements (continued)
RRMIEE®E)

(31 March 2013)
(Z2—=F=A=+—AR)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to
cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the
deficit is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement to
the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance Over the lease terms
leases
Buildings 2% 10 15%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures, equipment 20%
and motor vehicles
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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Leases (Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the income statement
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and bills receivables and other receivables.

Subsequent measurement — Loans and
receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in finance
costs for loans.
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Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment 10ss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net off directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and bills
payables, other payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement — Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices
or dealer price guotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions; reference to the current market value
of another instrument which is substantially the same; and a
discounted cash flow analysis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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Income tax (continued)

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of an infrastructure project,
are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, as expected. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the income statement by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold; and

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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Employee benefits (continued)

In addition, the Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the Retirement
Scheme. Contributions to the Retirement Scheme are charged
to the income statement as incurred. The Retirement Scheme
operates in a similar way to the MPF Scheme, except that when
an employee leaves the Retirement Scheme before his/her
interest in the Group’s employer contributions vests fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to make contributions for their
employees who are registered as permanent residents in
Mainland China. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.
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Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. The gain or 10ss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on the items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or income statement are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or income statement, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires EHIAEBENTSHERE BEEAED
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions SYEREEHMEHREA - B - BE
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, FEENREEE ERENEEER X
assets and liabilities, their accompanying disclosures and the ARBEWEOHE - (i EBEER o mR
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these BRBERAMGANTETEE  JE%E
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could MARZFENEESBERMEFELE
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the KA o

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement FI

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, RERAEBESHBER @ BRZSEFRGE
management has made the following judgement, apart from N BEEBLSEL T HMBERRDHE
those involving estimations, which has the most significant REBYESBEEHE -

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets BERE

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the EriESOREIATESRESER
event previously causing the impairment no longer exists, BINBFER - ASEEREEREBEED
the Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset sl LESEFE  ()VAGEERTE
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event BEBHEEE B EEESEZEIE
has occurred that may affect the asset value, or such an RRAFE  QBEZREERS AR
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2) EEETREEMStZARKE S RERE
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by FREEE RQERARRRES RERFT
the net present value of future cash flows, which are estimated HAEANEERR  BEZSHERE
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the TERIR S AE AL RALR o MR EEIRE
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash AUEEREREZRR(BHEESRE
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections TERIF A 2 B IR R SIE R ERR) - K
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the SYREAEP TR EREESENY
assumptions selected by management to determine the level 42 o

of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could have a material
effect on the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty fast 2 A EEM

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key TR A RS HAR G ] fEE A EE 2
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting BEHBEREEE N VRFEEFEE
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material HE XA Z R KBEEERE N ER G
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities ATrEEHEs HMEERE -

within the next financial year, are described below.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of leasehold land and
buildings of the Group

As described in note 14, the leasehold land and buildings
were revalued at the end of the reporting period on a market
value existing state basis by independent professional valuers.
Such valuations were based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgements, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal
or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the
residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are
different from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2013 was
HK$26,112,000 (2012: HK$26,112,000). Further details are given
in note 17.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment allowance for doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of accounts and
bills receivables. Allowances are applied to accounts and bills
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The identification of
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying value of the receivables and doubtful debt
expenses/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

For management purposes, the Group determines that there
are five reportable operating segments, based on location of
customers (the destination of sales), including Mainland China,
the United States of America (the "USA"), Europe, Japan and
others. These segments are managed separately as each
segment is subject to risks and returns that are different from
each other.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that interest income and other
unallocated income, and unallocated expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

st 2 THEE M ()
R E T 1
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4. Operating Segment Information continued) 4. RKESFER S

Group - 2013 REFH-—FBE—=F
Mainland
China USA Europe Japan Others Consolidated
HE KK E3E P =R HitwE &8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR FER TEL TR THR FHER

Segment revenue: DEREEWA
Sales to external HETFIRER
customers 459,010 309,800 250,619 121,601 302,964 1,443,994
Segment results DEEE 47,059 43,463 29,863 14,246 35,536 170,167
Interest and other F B REMRAE
unallocated income A 4,607
Unallocated expenses OB (80,242)
Profit before tax KR AEF 94,532
Income tax expense FERHEY (21,568)
Profit for the year VNS N L
attributable to owners FERF
of the Company 72,964
Segment assets NEEE 458,422 317,542 232,460 95,426 277,803 1,381,653
Unallocated assets FAEEE 421,135
1,802,788
Segment liabilities NEARE 82,938 39,932 25,433 7,068 30,964 186,335
Unallocated liabilities APHERE 473,974
660,309
Other segment information:  Et & # :
Depreciation and FEREE
amortisation 11,552 11,476 8,090 3,145 9,198 43,461
Unallocated amounts KAEEE 20,699
64,160
Capital expenditure* BARL 22,262 21,132 15,217 6,156 17,480 82,247
Unallocated amounts AOEETE 8,069
90,316
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * BARZREDE - BERRENRE

equipment.
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4.

Group - 2012
Mainland
China USA Europe Japan Others  Consolidated
SN e B A% HivitE poey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TET AL AL FAL FEL
Segment revenue: DEEEWA
Sales to external HETIRRFE
customers 468,696 189,431 437,192 88,685 261,964 1,445,968
Segment results PEEE 62,576 31,673 71,674 14,782 46,469 227,174
Interest and other HBREMRAE
unallocated income WA 8,853
Unallocated expenses OB (83,551)
Profit before tax KR ATEFI 152,476
Income tax expense FiEHAS (32,148)
Profit for the year KARER AR
attributable to owners FRER
of the Company 120,328
Segment assets DEBE 275,153 140,678 268,567 34,732 133,525 852,655
Unallocated assets KALEE 884,057
1,736,712
Segment liabilities AHaE 83,092 28,635 43,839 21,036 29,028 205,630
Unallocated liabilities Ao EE 462,220
667,850
Other segment information:  EH & #H :
Depreciation and FEREE
amortisation 8,656 5133 9733 1,479 5,072 30,073
Unallocated amounts FAEeE 13,994
44,067
Capital expenditure* BARZ 13,509 10,094 18,075 2444 8,950 53,072
Unallocated amounts Vo] 195,955
249,027
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * BARIREDE  BERREHORE -

equipment.
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REZEER )

Geographical information - non-current
assets

wEER -FRBEE

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBxT T

Hong Kong BB 52,061 38,319
Mainland China AR B K 861,091 773,733
Indonesia ENfE 144,233 131,627
1,057,385 943,679

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$750,198,000 (2012: HK$910,248,000) and
HK$371,238,000 (2012: HK$245,002,000) were derived from
sales to the largest customer and the second largest customer
of the Group, respectively. The above amounts include sales to
group of entities which are known to be under common control
with these customers.

Revenue, Other Income and Gains

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts. All significant intra-group transactions
have been eliminated on consolidation.

LIRS EEEREREEMEEE

DE -

EBFXFEEFNER
REBREE-—NRFE-_RBEFNHEEH
BEEWAD R A750,198,000/8 T (==
— Z4F 1 910,248,000% 7T ) 371,238,000
BT (—Z——4 : 245,002,0007T) °
MEBRERN—HCANT LR LR
IR BEEAHE -

EEWA » Hitt A K =
BREWARASE Y SEE  HENIRE
ERBAFIMEOERR T RIFE - &
EEARMFAEAZFERGABRR
#i4 -



@ Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited & (EIE)=R AR A 7

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR ()

(31 March 2013)
(ZZ—=F=fA=+—18)

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains continued) 5. &2 A ~ HUW A B UK )

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is as AREFLSZWA ~ HWA R Z 5T
follows: W
2013 2012
—E—= —T——fF
HK$000 HK$'000
FBxT FET
Revenue EEIA
Sale of goods EmiEE 1,443,994 1,445,968
Other income Hiplr A
Bank interest income RITHBUA 2,897 3,933
Others HAtb 1,710 853
4,607 4,786
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - MEMREER
plant and equipment Z Wz - 181
Reversal of a revaluation deficit on leasehold EEEE T MEFEHER
land and buildings - 3,886
- 4,067
Other income and gains HAUA Rz 4,607 8,853
6. Finance Costs 6. MMERAK
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within -~ ZBREREEEERE
five years IRITERFE 6,239 4,570
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2013)
F£=f=+—A)
Profit Before Tax 7. BRBAREF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REFBBRBANGEMNIG(GTA) 3%
(crediting): 15 :
2013 2012
—E—= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 1,194,143 1,148,891
Auditors’ remuneration ZER B2 2,223 2,072
Depreciation (Note 14)* PE (MIaE14)* 61,833 41,800
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments — F&{< + 8 & R I8 £ $
(Note 15)* (fFzE15)* 2,327 2,267
Employee benefits expenses (excluding REBAZH(TRIEES
directors’ remuneration — Note 8): B & — P 5E8)
Wages and salaries TERFS 327,539 288,535
Pension scheme contributions (defined RS IR (TR
contribution schemes) BED) 35,374 26,079
Less: Forfeited contributions W ERMEERR (321) (174)
Net pension scheme contributions RIKEFHEIRFOFE 35,053 25,905
Total employee benefits expenses* HEERFI 362,592 314,440
Minimum lease payments under operating T REFKERE  HIEHRES
leases in respect of land and buildings* INE 3,331 2,797
Foreign exchange differences, net PEH Z2FEE 1,964 3,766
Write-off of items of property, plant and WEEWE - BEREEER
equipment - 2
* Included in the respective balances are the following amounts * BIEERPRIEUTHALRED &
which are also included in the cost of inventories sold disclosed FERAz 5
above:
2013 2012
—g—-= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Depreciation e 41,594 28,261
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FEf L1070 & FROE B 1,867 1,812
Employee benefits expenses BERAZH 296,685 253,594
Minimum lease payments under operating leases +ihRIEFLKLIEE Y SKHES
in respect of land and buildings INES 3,331 2,790
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8. EZEZER{THARIMNE

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, REEEZERITHESMNESRIEEBBS
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of RGFABMRATRFES EmBAN( LmE
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the B ) REBATNEDE161ERBENT -

“Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Fees wE 360 360
Other emoluments: Hibe -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NEDER 3,261 3,224
Discretionary bonuses IIETEAL 4,291 7,674
Pension scheme contributions RIS FEIHR 446 446
7,998 11,344
8,358 11,704
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@ BIHHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FANTEUFERNTERT 2 RS
during the year were as follows; o
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho FREZIEE 120 120
Mr. Li Chi Chung FRIRSE
(resigned with effect from (R=—ZT—=%
28 February 2013) ZAZ+N\HEEER) 110 120
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony IS E e 120 120
Mr. Lu Chi Chant BEMExE
(appointed with effect from (R=—ZT—=%
28 February 2013) ZRAZ+NBEZEER) 10 -
360 360
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRWEEAM N BIIFNITE
independent non-executive directors during the year E2ME(ZT—ZF |) -

(2012: Nil).
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive's Remuneration
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors

—E—=F4% Annual Report 2013 e

8. EERTHAZMNE s
(b) HITES

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2R BikE
ik EWEN [l HE 5 Hesm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT THT FAT THEL
2013 “E-=F
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BEMARAE - 1,664 1,959 230 3,853
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying* (CUN-7 - 1,597 1,860 216 3,673
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu PHthrk - - 236 - 236
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, BARERT
Christina - - 236 - 236
- 3,261 4,291 446 7,998
2012 —E-C-F
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BEfARE - 1,664 3,468 230 5,362
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying* BN e - 1,560 3,284 216 5,060
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu PRtk - - 461 - 461
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, BARERT
Christina - - 461 - 461
- 3,224 7,674 446 11,344

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

The directors’ remuneration shown above does
not include the estimated monetary value of the
Group’s owned premises provided rent-free to an
executive director, Mr. Chung Yuk Sing (“Mr. Chung"),
during the year. The estimated rental value of such
accommodation was HK$126,000 (2012: HK$117,000)
for the year ended 31 March 2013.

* Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

REE AL ETEEHREXF
EREEAME 2L -

FHFIREEMES T RBERF
NRMITEFEE LA (8
EVRBEENAEEEENEL
HEEE  BE-_E—=F=A8
=t+—BILFE  ZEBZEE
F1EA126,0008L(ZF——4F :
117,000/7T) °

* BRNZEETRARBNITR
B
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9.

10.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2012: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2012: three) non-director, highest paid employees for the
year ended 31 March 2013 are set out below:

LEREHMNES

FR - AAREFHERCEMA(ZT
—ZF WE)VEF  ANESHEM0E
R EXH S HE « RBE-T—=
FZAZ+—ALEER  BT=8(=
T-—F ) REMEMFERES
MBS EEIT

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E-—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZAREYET 3,900 3,900
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAT 600 1,328
Pension scheme contributions RIREEEIHER 540 540
5,040 5,768

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HENFUTHENSSFHEEESES
REET :

Number of employees

EE%H
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t 21,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T - 2
3 3

Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC being
effective on 1 January 2008, the corporate income tax rate for
all enterprises in Mainland China is 25%.

10.

8%
EBEFEHUATRETBSELENGHER
BB MIR16.5%( —F——4F : 16.5%)Fi %
B o H bt 5 ERFUEFIMBIE - AR
BASEEKIEERNE M ETHE -

RER-_ZZNF-A-BERNPEE
KM PEREMALENTEME
18 A25% °
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10.
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Income TaX (Continued) 10. FEFH @)
WECLSE)EK AR AT ("YM (Shantou)”) and =38 &R % WECLE)BRAERAR(THMECLEE) D)
FXFRAF ("Maitex PRC”) are entitled to be exempted MERGRHRXGRA A ([ ERF )
from corporate income tax in the People’s Republic of China AEREEMERFIF R R EARLMN
(the "PRC") for the first two profit-making years and a 50% BI([HRE] DS - UREHE=F
reduction in corporate income tax for the succeeding three BEERRRBI50%BEEFTSHE o tHN + BIR
years. Moreover, under the relevant tax laws and regulations BENP B AEREENRBE 250 F)
in Mainland China, these companies may set off losses A EHR AR FEEEAS 7 EE - K
incurred by it in a financial year against profits made by it in the HARHE —ERZ B BEE % - B
succeeding financial year or years, subject to a maximum of BETMEBBAETKRFE -
five financial years.
According to the confirmation obtained by the Group from the BB EEER BTS2 HR - HE
PRC tax bureau, the first profit-making year of YM (Shantou) CsE) REREBN E ERFFES A
and Maitex PRC were the year ended 31 December 2007 and HEZTHF+_A=1+—HIFER
the year ended 31 December 2008, respectively. HE-_ZTZT)\F+-_A=+—HLFE -
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FiET
Current tax charge for the year: ANEFREIRR A ¢
Hong Kong BB 19,132 21,888
Elsewhere H A7 11,998 10,590
Overprovision of current tax in respect of iR F E RN EAT 1B R R B
prior years (7,371) (23)
Deferred (Note 26) IRIE (BT 5E26) (2,191) (307)
Total tax charge for the year REEHIAS P4 21,568 32,148
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10.

11.

Income TaX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the tax jurisdictions in which
the Company and majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

10.

Fris®i @)
AR AR R R A B A TR
KBTS RLA M A B 5 B2 B A i
Rz BB M BUR BB R 5 2 BUAR
2RI

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=f —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Profit before tax Rk 75 AT i A 94,532 152,476
Tax at the applicable rates to profit in the tax BB ARG R AR ENEFE A
jurisdictions concerned ZRERAHE 2 TIE 14,977 24,454
Lower tax rate due to tax holiday RSB 2 BIERER (854) (2,755)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BT FEANRTR AL R
previous years (7,371) (23)
Income not subject to tax AR ZHA (1,014) (1,291)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 2 B 2,803 744
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the AR EEZ R EINE AT
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC A 73K FS%TEINTR 2 &
subsidiaries (2,191) -
Tax losses not recognised RIERI IS E 1B 15,100 11,960
Others Hith 118 (941)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAREEERBERAE 2
BTE S H 21,568 32,148

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners
of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 includes a loss of
HK$5,383,000 (2012: HK$4,294,000) excluding dividend income
from a subsidiary of HK$180,000,000 (2012: HK$142,000,000)
and interest income from a subsidiary of HK$5,112,000 (2012:
HK$4,250,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 29).

11.

RRAERABGFERT

HE-_ZT—=F=-A=+t—BI&E
RAARBEBAEBLGE SN BEBIA
5,383,000/ 70 ( =& — Z4F : 4,294,000
BIL)  TRIERBEMBARMRE
I A 180,000,000 7T ( = F — = 4F ¢
142,000,000/ 7T ) & #1] B4 A 5,112,000/
JL(=Z——4F : 4,250,000/ 7C) © BRA
AR RET AR BR (F7E29) ©
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12.

13.
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Dividends 12. RE
2013 2012
—E-=f —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FAT
Dividends paid during the year: FRENKRE
Final in respect of the financial year ended HEZT——F=A=+—HLE
31 March 2012 — HK7 cents per ordinary VR FEE AR E — S LR
share (2012: final dividend of HK3 cents per 7B =ZZE—=F : =
ordinary share, in respect of the financial —E——F=ZA=+—HL1
year ended 31 March 2011) B R S R HARR B
G @ARIEL) 34,978 14,990
Interim — HK7 cents (2012: HK7 cents) per o B — B AR B AR 7 B (L
ordinary share (Z=——F : 780 34,978 34,978
69,956 49,968
Proposed final dividends HK4 cents R AN B B — G AR AR
(2012: HK7 cents) per ordinary share AEN(ZB—=4F : 73800) 19,987 34,978

The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the
number of shares in issue as at the reporting date, and is
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial
statements do not reflect the dividend payable.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to
Oowners of the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
for the year of HK$72,964,000 (2012: HK$120,328,000), and
499,680,000 (2012: 499,680,000) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2013 and
2012 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during those years.

13.

AEEZFHRARPARBTIENHER S E
TROHEBEE - WARFARRRERLE
ERCRAFARESIER - TR - AR
BRI E|RREMBE -

RRABEEAREESRER

BRERBFTDBEFRARRFESR A
JE A 4 955 F1 72,964,000/ T (- ——
F 1 120,328,000 L) * L RFRD
17 A% 499,680,000 ( ZF — —4F :
499,680,0000% )5T& -

AEBREE T =FN_T——F=
A=+—BILFE  HEBEEHExE

TEAE A EZ2YARSREAR
) o



@ Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited & (EIE)=R AR A 7

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BRI MY T ()

(31 March 2013)
(ZZ—=F=fA=+—18)

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y% BERRE
Group REH
31 March 2013 —E-=%=H=+—H
Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plant and and motor ~ Construction
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles  in progress Total
g g PERES-R
THRET NERE HERRE FERAE ERIE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FAn FEn FAn TAn TAn
Cost or valuation: FATEE -
At beginning of year 1) 290,523 107,807 196,265 61,335 397,971 1,053,901
Additions e 20,900 3,041 16,516 9,271 40,588 90,316
Transfers f=v7d 429,496 - 2,191 2,814 (434,501) -
Revaluation e 79,849 - - - - 79,849
Exchange realignment 5 % (2,205) (10) (852) (161) (4,058) (7,286)
At31March 2013 W_E-=F=f=1-H 818,563 110,838 214,120 73,259 - 1,216,780
Accumulated depreciation; 2ME:
At beginning of year &) - 71,803 110,377 43,303 - 225,483
Provided during the year EniE 25,531 11,446 17,148 7,708 - 61,833
Write-back on revaluation BEEH (25,429) - - - - (25,429)
Exchange realignment EiA% (102) @) (121) (24) - (251)
At 31 March 2013 W_E-=F=f=1-H - 83,245 127,404 50,987 - 261,636
Net book value: BRHE
At31March 2013 W_E-=F=R=1-H 818,563 27,593 86,716 22,272 - 955,144
Analysis of cost or valuation: RASEEA -
At cost ERAE - 110,838 214,120 73,259 - 398,217
At 31 March 2013 valuation RN -Z2-=%
ZE=t-RzfifE 818,563 - - - - 818,563
818,563 110,838 214120 73,259 - 1,216,780
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment continued) 14. ¥ - BERREE @
Group REH
31 March 2012 —E-——fF=HA=+—H
Fumiture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plant and andmotor  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles in progress Total
BE BE RE RE-
THREF mERE  ERREE RERAE FEIR &
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
AL AL AL AL AL AL
Cost or valuation: RATEE -
Atbeginning of year ) 267,304 96,061 148,393 51813 203123 766,694
Additions NE - 10,338 42,734 8,724 187,231 249,027
Disposals e - - - 809) - (809)
Written off 6] - (2,8%) - - - (2,855)
Revaluation B 14729 - - - - 14729
Exchange realignment 5% 8490 4,263 5,138 1,607 7617 27,115
At 31 March 2012 W_E-—F=f=1-H 290,523 107,807 196,265 61,335 397,971 1,053,901
Accumulated depreciation; 2HEE
At beginning of year 4 - 58,898 93514 36,910 - 189,322
Provided during the year FifE 8,993 13,097 13847 5863 - 41,800
Disposals et - - - 630) - 630
Written off s - (2,853) - - - (2,353)
Write-back on revaluation B (8977) - - - - 8977)
Exchange realignment B A% (16) 2,661 3016 1,160 - 6,821
At 31 March 2012 R=Z-—#=f=1-H - 71,803 110,377 43303 - 225483
Net book value: BRE
At 31 March 2012 WZE--F=F=+-H 290,523 36,004 85,888 18,032 397,971 828418
Analysis of cost or valuation: RASEEAT -
At cost BRAE - 107,807 196,265 61,335 397971 763378
At 31 March 2012 valuation ER-E-CF
ZA=t-BzfE 290,523 - - - - 290,523
290,523 107,807 196,265 61,335 397,971 1,053,901
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An analysis of the valuation of the land and buildings of the
Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

R|EMR  AEBZ T NEF 2 AE

2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FET

Land and buildings held on medium term leases W& ARERFAL)EH ~ T &

in Hong Kong Bg¥

32,200

Land and buildings held on medium term leases R & ASMDE AR LSS

outside Hong Kong
Buildings held on long term leases outside
Hong Kong TR

Z KRBT

Total valuation BihE

The Group's leasehold land and buildings were revalued
individually at 31 March 2013 by Greater China Appraisal
Limited and Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate open
market value of HK$818,563,000, based on their existing use.
Revaluation surpluses of HK$105,278,000 was credited to the
statement of other comprehensive income. The effect of the
total revaluation surplus of HK$105,278,000 was reflected as
an increase of valuation of property, plant and equipment of
HK$79,849,000 and write-back of accumulated depreciation of
HK$25,429,000.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, their
carrying amounts would have been HK$655,423,000 (2012:
HK$231,003,000).

As at 31 March 2013, one of the Group's leasehold buildings
with a net book value of HK$915,000 (2012: HK$907,000) has
been provided as rent-free accommodation to Mr. Chung, an
executive director of the Company during the year (Note 15).

255,249

REBAIMERIAREIROFH

3,074

290,523

REBZHELHNETHBEIEEAE
RGEREFERRA R R E@T
FHERRAANR-_BE—=F=A=1+—H
REERB®ARFMEFEELF G
& #£18818,563,000 7T » il B AT E
A 8 il 2 #2105,278,00078 7T Al 5T A E At
THE K - LR R F105,278,000
BITHNZERRNYE - BB KREN
B35 9N79,849,00078 7T I M # R8T &
25,429,000 7T ©

A BHE Tt RIETIRE PR AR RE
e FIBR - H B8R (/R & 5 655,423,000
T (ZZF— 4 : 231,003,000 7T) °

RZE—=F=A=+—0 K&EFHH
—IEEREF(ES15,0008 T (— T — —4F
907,000/ ) 2 HERFRENIRE T8
FE(RRR—BRTES ) FREER
(B3E15) »
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15. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 15. AT HBEERE
Group
rEME
2013 2012
—_E2—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FBT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FHEREE 80,765 79,150
Amortisation recognised during the year R TR 8 (B E7)

(Note 7) (2,327) (2,267)
Exchange realignment PE W IR - 3,882
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HZKEAE 78,438 80,765
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATERRUE © e REMEK

deposits and other receivables (Note 16) I8 2 BNERER & (P 3E16) (2,309) (2,295)
Non-current portion JERNHEREE 76,129 78,470
An analysis of the carrying amounts of prepaid land lease RREMR - AEEENLHEETRELZ
payments of the Group at the end of the reporting period is as BREEDATAAT -
follows:

2013 2012

—_=2—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Long term leases outside Hong Kong BEAEINZ REIFHA 3,289 3,399
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong BEEIN R HATEAY 75,149 77,366
78,438 80,765

One of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a net 7N £ B E A — I8 BR EDE (A 1,608,0000% 7T
book value of HK$1,608,000 (2012: HK$1,637,000), together with (ZZ—=4F : 1,637,000 7T) 2 B T
the leasehold buildings thereon (Note 14), has been provided as FEEE  BREASET(MIE14)RE
rent-free accommodation to Mr. Chung, an executive director NIt VE BB L L (R DT —ZHi7ES)

of the Company during the year. TRMERE -
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16. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 16. ENKE - RERHEMERR

Receivables b= |
Group Company
REME AAH
Note 2013 2012 2013 2012

M == ZT-—-F —FT-=F —T=F
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T TAT TEx TAT

Prepaid land lease TEfT AR EFIA

payments 15 2,309 2,295 - -
Deposit paid for IR HESEIEE

construction projects (HhIAEE D)

in the Jiangxi Site (the

“Jiangxi Project”) - 6,773 - -
Deposits for property, plant  &%% - &R &R

and equipment AR - 3,906 - -
Prepayments SEUNE 7,144 10,840 137 138
Deposits and other B KE M EUGRIE

receivables 12,864 20,996 - -

22,317 44,810 137 138

Current portion included in -~ BIEFETEMNFUE - &2

prepayments, deposits R oAt MR IE Y

and other receivables BNEAER 5 (22,317) (34,131) (137) (138)
Non-current portion JERNAERER - 10,679 - -
None of the financial assets included in the above balances is Ll e R E E e Hisl R E o BIEEN
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the LREWFIBESRANSREE @ T E
above balances relate to receivables for which there was no RFRGFEEE ©

recent history of default.
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Cost and carrying amount:

At beginning and end of year RETREFLR

The Group's goodwill was wholly allocated to a cash-generating
unit engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and
garments (the “Unit"). The recoverable amount of the Unit has
been determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a five-year
period financial budget approved by senior management.
The financial budgets are prepared reflecting actual and
prior year performance and development expectations.
The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are the
budgeted gross margin which is the average gross profit
margin achieved in the year immediately before budgeted
years and the discount rate of 6.8% (2012: 8.1%), which is
before tax and reflects specific risks relating to the Unit. The
cash flow projections are prepared based on the assumption
that the cash-generating unit will have revenue based on the
actual sales order amount and revenue forecast by the head
of the sales department for the first year, and then maintain
a 5% growth rate thereafter. The directors believe that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the Unit to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the recoverable
amount of the Unit is higher than its carrying amount, the
directors consider there was no impairment of the goodwill at
the end of the reporting period.

RAMERIREE

—ZE—=%4%3% Annual Report 2013

2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FHET

26,112

REBZ B MEREFEDRIMAK
TEMBEEZRSEFEM([ZEM]) -
ZEMz SRR EEAEERE
E MERBEAREHSAEEARE
Mz AEMBIEEHMEA 2 RERER
- WBBEEZREIIRRER - BEXR
BREHRE REREBAIETERBR
RIFEE 2 ENX(NEEEEFEAZ
FRAESRZFHENE) KRR E6.8%
T 81%) (TIBRBEAT K e ek B
ZEUEEZFERR) - B RERE
ﬂﬁﬁi?iﬁﬁHMXWEmﬁ
% ZERDIRBEERKEE “A%&%
ERTEREFMIEN W E %W Hig#
h%% SRR - BEEMAE EHZF
RRATESIEM R 2 28 - B TEEHK
ZEBAL 2 IRTHEB AT WE S - i
RzBElz I RE BN EREE &
ERR/NMERGELEEFRRE -
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Unlisted investments, at cost JELETIRE - IBRAE

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The loan to a subsidiary included in the Company’s current
assets is unsecured, interest-bearing at the rate of 2.2% per
annum and repayable on demand or within one year.

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries, would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Ccompany
¥ /N
2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FAT
43,368

S A 72 BB - %8 RIAR
BRI -

RTHBARZERBRERAREZRE
BEN  REEIR - AFFE22%:18 R
BRBRIN—FAEE -

TRIBARBMBLAR HEFERR
B RERFTYHAREFAREFEARY
BIRRAEBEEFEZIRAD - &
EXERAR  FIEHMMBARERK
SEREANITE -

TEMBARFEET

Place of Percentage of

incorporation/ Nominal value of ~ €quity attributable

registration and issued share/paid-up ~to the Company

operations registered capital A AREERZEDN
Name BRRL/ BT ERTROEE 2012 Principal activities
ARER REEHY HREMER “ZT-F IEER
Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2; 100 Investment holding
EX(EXEE)BRLA &5 Non-voting deferred BB

HK$10,000 (Note (a))
(2012: Ordinary HKS$2;
Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000)
TRR2BTL
BARRELR
10,0007 7t Pz (a)
(22— Lk
28T EREEER
FE8%10,00087T)
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2,680,000 7T)

18. Investments in Subsidiaries continued) 18. RHBATZ’RE &)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  €quity attributable
registration and issued share/paidq-up 10 the Company
operations registered capital A2 AEERRADL

Name A - BERIRAEE/ 2013 2012 Principal activities

GES REEHY HRAMER —T-=F —T--F IEEF

YM (Shantou) (Note (b)) PRC/Mainland China US$23,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of

WECUSE) (MEb) /R AR (2012: US$23,500,000) sportswear and garments

23,500,000%7T EERBEEDRRAK
(Z2——F:
23,500,000%7T)

WECIBBKERAT PRC/Mainland China HK$15,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("YY (Shantou)") (Note (b)) RE /AR (2012: HK$15,000,000) sportswear and garments
(MAECLEE) ]) (D) 15,000,000 7 EERBEEDRRAK

(ZF—=F:
15,000,0007% 7T
Eagle Nice Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 (2012: HK$1) 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
BERRBRAF &% 1T sportswear and garments
(ZZ——F:1%71) EERBEEDRRAK
Yue Mei (HK) Garment Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 (2012: HK$1) 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
WE(EE)BKERAT BA BT sportswear and garments
(ZZ——F:1%71) EERBEEDRRAK
Maitex (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
FB(EXEE)ERAH B (2012: HK$1,000) sportswear and garments
1,0007T EERBEEDRRAK
(ZZ—=%F :1,000%7T)
Maitex PRC (Note (b)) PRC/Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
BRI (P (b)) R/ REAE (2012: HK$40,000,000) sportswear and garments
40,000,000 7T EEREEEDRRAK
(Z2——F:
40,000,000%7T)
King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 (2012: HK$1) 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
SE (BXXE) 5RAA &% 1T sportswear and garments
(ZZ——F 1% EERBEEDRRAK

SECUEREKERAT PRC/Mainland China US$2,680,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("KE (Shantou)") (Note (b)) R/ REAE (2012: US$2,680,000) sportswear and garments
(I&ECLEE)]) (M7 D) 2,680,003 7 EERBEEDRRAK

(ZF—=F:
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Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of
registration and issued share/paid-up
operations registered capital
Name BRI/ &R ERTRHER
ARER REEBE BREMER
BRGLERERERDR PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000
("Hung Eagle Garment”) (Note (0) & /Bl Ak (2012: US$4,000,000)
(TEREED (Ki5Eb) 4,000,005 7
(ZF-=F:
4,000,000%7T)
Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Hong Kong HKS$1 (2012: HKS$1)
Holdings Limited &5 1%
B () ERBR AR (Z2—=%F:1%871)
PT. Eagle Nice Indonesia Indonesia US$21,000,000
("EN Indonesia") E1fe (2012: US$21,000,000)
(IBx=8RE)) 21,000,000 7T
(ZF-=%:
21,000,000%7T)
Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Garment Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000
BX(IRm)ERERLA 0 (2012: HK$10,000)
10,000 7T
(Z2—=%:
10,0003 7T)
EXEYRXERAT PRC/Mainland China 1S$25,000,000
("EN (Yifeng)") (Note (b)) FE/ PEAR (2012: US$22,370,000)
(IBX(EE) ) (M) 25,000,000 7T
(ZF-=%:
22,370,000%7T)
Notes:
€)] The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no

rights to attend or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive
any surplus assets in a return of capital in a winding-up (other
than the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid-up on such
shares, after the sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share
has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company in such winding-up).

(b) YM (Shantou), YY (Shantou), Maitex PRC, KE (Shantou), Hung Eagle
Garment and EN (Yifeng) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under PRC law.

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the

company.

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
ARAEEEEADN
2012 Principal activities
“T--F FEER
100 Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments
EERBEEEDRRAK
100 Investment holding
REER
100 Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments
EEREEEBRIAK
100 Investment holding
REER
100 Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments
EEREEEBRIAK
BisE
(@ ERZEEERY EEFRRRE - H/E

BRRAREHAER HIRE - URIEBRRE
AABESEANRGEE(FRRERY
¥ [l 48 £7.100,000,000,000,0007# 7T 2 Ik T
RAEBEFEAR  AREOHZHRX

ABRFMERR O E(ERSD) o

(b) #ERCLE) - wEOUEE) RS - £
ECUE) - BREEREX(EE)RIRE

TR EREMINIBE R

LRFAMB AR BARRRERSA
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19. Inventories 19. 78
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT Tt
Raw materials R 111,827 118,380
Work in progress EER 105,735 82,003
Finished goods SRk 12,168 44,578
229,730 244,961
20. Accounts and Bills Receivables 20. BUWERRKRERE
The Group's accounts and bills receivables mainly relate to a REE 2 EWRR R R R 285 TR
few recognised and creditworthy customers. The credit period REERFONEFER - EEH—MRAR30
is generally for a period of 30 to 45 days (2012: 30 to 45 days). KEASK(ZZE——4F : 30KEL5K) °
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding AEEB N EREREEKFOBREREE
receivables to minimise the credit risk. Overdue balances are % BEERRES = &EKT - @mER
regularly reviewed by the management of the Group. The Rz &R ANEEERE TR o B
accounts and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing. ERRZBE AR o
An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at the HEREPRZERERRZERESRE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HERARER DATLAT -
follows:
Group
TEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT
Within 30 days 30K 114,266 117,122
31to 60 days 3T RE60K 45,639 22,766
61to 90 days 61 REI0K 5,999 4
Over 90 days 90K 18,100 2,063
184,004 141,955
The above balances are neither past due nor impaired. The LA _E #5504 80 HA K R E - B IEAE A L
financial assets included in the above balances relate to WER RGNS BB E « F AR

receivables for which there was no recent history of default. FOEE ©
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21.

cash and Cash Equivalents 21. RERBEESEEEH
Group Company
rEH PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—ZT—= —T—F —T-= —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT FET FAT
Cash and bank balances Re RRITET 299,282 175,583 548 369
Non-pledged time deposits REFHBEPR=[EAZ
with original maturity of IEE R E TR
less than three months 166,241 10,070 -
Non-pledged time deposits JREFARBBA=EH 2
with original maturity of IEE R EHTER
over three months - 30,162 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEER 309,352 371,986 10,618 369

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to HK$150,197,000 (2012: HK$264,330,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RIRERR - AEBUARB(TARE])
FHERIE S RIBTT4 1T £150,197,0007%
(T — 4 : 264,330,000/ 7T) - AR
BASERLBRAEMER « AMBEF
I K e ) INGEE B 3 R A I A5 B - BB RE K
NIEEERT - AR EER B RERE
HHBINE 275 2 SRITIEA R K0 B E AL

FR|BITHRSREARTERNE 2T
BEERMEAE - NREIZBIEREH
EH—RE=EANEREREFR > L5
RUIRFE HATE B M R BRERA B, dRTTHE
BRI F RN EER BRI R 2R
T
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22.

23.
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Accounts and Bills Payables 22. ENHERIRERE
An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the RIERRZ ENERREZBREREH
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HARVBREE D HTIO T -
follows:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within 90 days 90K 102,259 99,548
91 to 180 days 91 ARZE180K 1,843 556
181 to 365 days 181 RE365K 569 749
Over 365 days 365K LA = 4,149 2,511
108,820 103,364
The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing ENERERERRREERR - EEH
and are normally settled on 45-day terms. Included in —MBR FAENERREER
accounts and bills payables of HK$108,820,000 (31 March 108,820,000 T (ZE——F=H=+—
2012: HK$103,364,000) is bills payable of HK$2,320,000 (31 H : 103,364,000 /% 7T ) B 1% JE 1 5= 18
March 2012: HK$3,312,000) which were supported by the 23200008 L(ZE——F=A=+—
corporate guarantee executed by the Company amounting H 3312000 7L)  WZE—=F=
to HK$46,000,000 as at 31 March 2013 (31 March 2012: R=+—BURARRBEHELZ RAER
HK$46,000,000). 46,000,000 (ZFE——F=ZA=+—
H : 46,000,000 7T, ) {EHLHF ©
Banking Facilities 23. RITERAEE

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by the corporate guarantees executed by the
Company and a subsidiary of the Company to the extent of
HK$316,000,000 (31 March 2012: HK$356,000,000) of which an
aggregate amount of HK$155,966,000 was utilised.

W_ZE—=fF=F=+—H A&£Ex
RITHEAEEUAARRR RAR T —REH
B X 72537 LA316,000,000 78 T AR 2 A
AERIEAER(ZE——F=A=+—
H : 356,000,000/8 )+ EFREAAEH
155,966,000/ 7T °
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24. Accrued Liabilities and Other Payables 24. EGtEERHEMEMNTIE
Group Company
AEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —T——-F —ZE-= —E—F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT FExT FET
Deferred income PRIELA 1,130 1,914 - -
Other payables H b FRIE 57,003 35,352 - -
Accruals fERHE A 38,336 43,579 - 157
96,469 80,845 - 157
Other payables of the Group at 31 March 2013 included a AEEBR - T—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HKNH
subsidy of HK$3,403,000 (2012: HK$6,646,000) received from EMRERERPBRIAEELEHEA
the People’s Government of Yifeng County, Jiangxi Province, R IR BT U B 3,403,000 T ( =T — =
the PRC for the construction cost of basic infrastructure to F 1 6,646,000 C)ITHE) - ERAEE
be incurred by the Group for the development of the Jiangxi FETIHEENEREREENAE - F
Project. During the year, an amount of HK$3,243,000 (2012: W BENFA3,243,0008 L ( —ZF——4F :
HK$2,543,000) was utilised and has been offset against the 2,543,000/ 7T ) M 4 FE S K AN HE 4 o
construction cost.
25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. FHESRITER
Group rEE
Effective
interest rate ERFI= Maturity ~ ZI8R 2013 2012
(%) (%) (Note) (HisE) “E-=F ZB-f
HK$'000 HKS$'000
THERT TAET
Current BP A
Bank loans - unsecured RITER— 1.14% t0 2.2% 1.14%%2.2% Ondemand EEX 387,646 418,896
it (2012:1.05%10221%) (ZF——%:

1.05%%2.21%)
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25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings continued) 25. i EB{ITEXR (&)

Company PIN/NE]
Effective
interest rate BRAIE Maturity ~ ZIH5R 2013 2012
(%) (%) (Note) (KtzE) e e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TR
Current ENHA
Bank loans - unsecured RITER— 1.14% 10 2.2% 1.14%%2.2% Ondemand REEsk 234,000 234,000
fisig (2012:1.05%10221%) (ZF——4%:
1.05%%22.21%)
Note: B e -
As at 31 March 2013, HK$153,646,000 (2012: HK$184,896,000) of the bank R-Z-=F=A=+—H1 - 387,846,000 7T(=
borrowings of HK$387,846,000 (2012: HK$418,896,000), were supported by T— —4F 1 418,896,000 L) Z RITIEE + H
corporate guarantees executed by the Company and a subsidiary of the 153,646,000/ 7T ( = Z — =4 : 184,896,000/ 7T)
Ccompany. AR R 8 R AR B — B A R L A R ERIE
FF o
Since the Group’'s and the Company’s bank loans contain HRAEBERAARNRITERR S EE
repayment on-demand clauses, the loans are included within KEB G - ERGTARER BRITHE
current interest-bearing bank borrowings and analysed into B UHMAEEREEZRITENR -
bank loans repayable on demand.
Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts BIERTEZ V82 AEBRANT
repayable in respect of the Group’s and the Company’s bank RITEZERSESITOT
loan are analysed as follows:
Group Company
rEH ¥ N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —ET——-F —E=-= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET FHET
Analysed into: Pax)iv=I
Within one year —FR 145,250 145,250 39,000 39,000
In the second year B _F 31,250 31,250 - -
In the third to fourth years, SE=FZF$HMmE
inclusive (BIEERWE) 211,146 242,396 195,000 195,000

387,646 418,896 234,000 234,000
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Group IREE
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
Accelerated profits on
tax Asset PRC
depreciation  revaluation subsidiaries Total
B A )
pilifz3 R IREF
BAITE BEER ZHEMB met
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT FET FAT
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FWA—H 817 18,543 10,845 30,205
Deferred tax credited to FRtAGERERZ
the consolidated income EIERLTE(HTEE10)
statement during the year
(Note 10) (307) - - (307)
Deferred tax debited to equity FAREARMBKRZ
during the year EERTE - 4,368 - 4,368
Exchange realignment BEE 5 R - 853 - 853
At 31 March 2012 R=ZZE——F=A=+—H 510 23,764 10,845 35,119
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
Accelerated profits
tax Asset on PRC
depreciation  revaluation subsidiaries Total
Bt A )
Iz RO REF
BlAHTE BEEMR ZEMB Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHT TAT FAT
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FMWA—H 510 23,764 10,845 35,119
Deferred tax credited to the FREFAGEEWRERZ
consolidated income statement  EFERIIE (FHEE10)
during the year (Note 10) - - (2,191) (2,191)
Withholding tax on repatriation on Bl B AR B FIEL ~
earnings from subsidiaries in TEANEL
the PRC - - (4,920) (4,920)
Deferred tax debited to equity FAREAMGRZ
during the year EERIA - 24,663 - 24,663

At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=F=A=+—H 510 48,427 3,734 52,671
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Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings accrued after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%. In estimating
the withholding taxes on dividends expected to be distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
have made assessment based on the factors which included
dividend policy and the level of capital and working capital
required for the Group’s operations in the foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2013, there were no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities (2012: Nil) for withholding taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Company’s
subsidiaries expected to be distributed, after considering the
above mentioned factors, in the foreseeable future.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$55,000
(2012: HK$1,272,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the company in which the
tax losses arose. The Group has estimate tax losses arising
in Mainland China and Indonesia of HK$91,988,000 (2012:
HK$43,031,000) and HK$31,676,000 (2012: HK$21,312,000),
respectively, that will expire in five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of those losses as the directors consider
that it is uncertain whether sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. There
are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

IR BEROE - AR BIRRERK S 2 SN iR
BERERIINEREE TR 2R EBHE
WI10%TEFF  ZRER =T N\F— A
—BEX WERRZ-_ZZTtF+=A
=+—HRBREAZEF o M BRKEEIN
PR EE 2 AVEARERET IS 16L) - RIAT
FAREERTBIBEE o REB ZERAMH
5% 2 10% o fEflEt ez S H B R RER ST
WBAR —EENF—A—HBREBELEN
AT TEHIREE AR B TR TR INTR - &
FEFERERBER RSB EELR]
RRKMBEAREEESFRHE -

RZE—=F=fA=+—H &EE Ll
AE% - A BARK - WEBRAA RN
[ 5178 HAHE R B oK [ SR A R A T8 40
FOBEARBRECHEBEEE(ZT—=
FfE) -

REBEREBE S 2 B T8 E51855,00078 7T
(ZZ——% : 1,272,000/ 7T) A ER HA A
RIS E A RTEE B A R B2 ER R
B o REBETBFNRREABEREEELEZ
FRIBEIED B A91,988,0008 T( —Z——
£ :43,031,000/87T) %31,676,00087L(=
T— 4 : 21,312,000 T) R AFRA
EIER - AR B A ERBIET - EFE
BB RHETE B B S SR B s R 85 AT F
ARFIEEE - AT ERRETETIEE
B o AR RIAERRIRER S AT
SRER -



Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &3 (BB )ERER 2 7

to Financial Statements (continued)

e E AN ER e D)

(31 March 2013)
(Z2—=F=A=+—AR)

Company
¥ /N
2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: TETERA
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0004% &%
HK$0.01 each H{E0.01E L BB 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER
499,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 499,680,000/ &%
H{E0.01 8T Tl 4,997

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company's directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group and customers of the Group. The Scheme
became effective on 6 August 2003 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to independent non-executive directors’
approval in advance. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

ARABRE —RERE S (%8 ))
EEMHANEERNEEEMERNAE
REEATRHERNEE - ZETENE
BRSEATBRARRER(BREEL
FRITESR)  AEEEMER - AEE
EmIREHERRAEEES - %atEl
B-ZEZ=F\ARBERER  BIFES
THUHEER] - BR - ZFHEBEZAH
RET10FAER -

B IRBZATBIEER BB RTTEIBAE
2H LIREITRER - HERARBREM
By ) 2 31T ALD 10% o MMEMR + — (8 A 5
AR RIEEREATAZAEEREER
ZEATETORNEE - RETSEB
RABREMRIRE EITRND1%  E—
FEBEAIBBZR BN BRI AR K
RARGHUSARALE

MARRESE - (TRAHN T ERR LR
SR A TR BB - HAFER
BB IEMITESFHLE « 1IN - ERM
TEAYEA - HAANRAEEZBERYK
BUIFATESRERFEABEALRL
EREARIE - BB D R PMEAI R R B 317
Pf70.1% kLt HE B AR RRERE &
{E#8385,000,000/& 7T * RIZASEERBIRK
GES IR -
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from date of
the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme,
if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the
offer of the share options; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share options have been granted under the Scheme as at
31 March 2013 or up to the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capitals of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant
t0 a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in August 2003,
and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor and the existing 1,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid, at par.

R 2 AN % B 218
A BAERRARIAEVETRBARE
ZIAER - B Z B ITEHR A
EXEE  NETREBHEHAS  YNA
BEER L ASRETZRAF 2 AsZat
ZIER A BER(ARREERE) -

BERENTEERESET - BTEER
UT=Fz&m%E  RKLBEEEAR
RARNDEETBMEXZABERAE (5
R DEVTHE ¢ ()R B R R ER S
BB AR AT F TR (E - R
(AR BRADEIE

R-T—=#=A=+—-BRBEHHR
RESERRAL - HEIREZBIRD
FEARE AR -

B R NY BE T A AR SR AR
RERRAER o

REH
AEBRAFERBEFEZRHEEER
HE TN ERR T 26
REF °

AEBERNKFEEARARE-_ZSZT=F
NAZEBER(TER]DRENBRR
R AE(EREE - AR R RIRMETT
7 B A TE B & 3R 4 1,000,000 4% & i B
00T TLIZEEARIER R RME 2=
o
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Group (Continued)

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, subsidiaries
registered in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their
profits after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve, until the balance
of the reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered
capitals. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the relevant

AEBE ()
BEAERER - EhEEMONEL
A8 S B B 18 5 R 10% (2 R B & 142 1)
BEHESETRNRES  ARXEH
M RE B R R BB AR50% - TEH
B GIFTEE TREBET 2 RH
e T BRI S 2SR o

PRC regulations, the statutory surplus reserve may be used to
offset against accumulated losses.

Company RAE]
Retained
Share profits/
premium Capital (accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
Notes Bin B/
ok SEERR BAGE (RER) et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT TR THT

At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FMA—H 472,586 43,088 (44,659) 471,015
Profit and total comprehensive FRaM ke ERHEEE "
income for the year - - 141,956% 141,956
Final 2011 dividend T ——FRERA 12 - - (14,990) (14,990)
Interim 2012 dividend T -ZFPHRE 12 - - (34,978) (34,978)
At31March2012and 1 April 2012 R-T——&=A=+—HkK
—Z-—FNA—H 472,586 43,088 47,329 563,003
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREEKEEE "
income for the year - - 179,729* 179,729
Final 2012 dividend “E-CFRERE 12 - - (34,978) (34,978)
Interim 2013 dividend “T-ZFHERR 12 - - (34,978) (34,978)
At 31 March 2013 WZE—=F=A=+—H 472,586 43,088 157,102 672,776
* The balance included dividend income from a subsidiary of * ZEBBEERANEB QR MK E R

HK$180,000,000 (2012: HK$142,000,000) and interest income from a
subsidiary of HK$5,112,000 (2012: HK$4,250,000).

A 180,000,000 % T ( = & — = F :
142,000,000/ 7T ) & F & 5,112,000/
JL(ZT——4 : 4,250,000/ 7T) °

The capital reserve of the Company represents the excess of
the then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
capital reserve may be distributed to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

RRRERFBEEARFRBEEEMKE
MEARERNSAEEFRE  BHAR
BRI M BT BEAEBEZEZR - RIF
RMERERAE  EXAREIDIRTAR
AR - EREREEFIRAE AL
ARBMBREELAEEBPIYE
IF o
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30.

31.

32.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

Major non-cash transaction

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group had the following major non-cash transaction:

During the year, deposits for property, plant and equipment
of HK$10,679,000 (2012: HK$2,205,000) were transferred
to property, plant and equipment upon acceptance by and
delivery to the Group (Note 16).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities not
provided for at the end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).

As at 31 March 2013, the Company and a subsidiary of the
Company has given corporate guarantees to banks to the
extent of HK$316,000,000 (2012: HK$356,000,000) for banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company, which
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$155,966,000
(2012: HK$193,825,000) at the end of the reporting period (Note
23).

Operating Lease Arrangements

The Group leased certain of its office, factories and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

30.

31.

32.
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RERENERMTE

ITEFRERS
AR BREAMBH RS - ARE
BUTEBHRERS

RER 10,679,000 T( —F— —4F -
2,205,000 70) 2 W3 - BB REE 2%
CRASEEEMARARNEER HeERE
M BRE KRB (MIEE16) ©

HAREE

RIEHR - ARE LB WA
EASABE(ZT——F &) -

W-ZE—=F=ZA=+—8 ARQ7
EARG—MHBEARRES THE
NAERZRITHBEEBMRITE
H % % 316,000,000 T ( — T — — 4 :
356,000,000/ 7T ) A Al EAR - IR & H
K BEA#I155,966,0008 (=T —=
F 1 193,825,000/ 7T ) Z N EIHELR ©

REHERHE
AEERBEEAECHAEESTHA
E -BEREIRS BEIJHEBNT—
EFA E

RS - AEER R HEE R
TR 2 KA S B AR FHUR M
fi :

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FRQ 3,470 -
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEEFNF(BEEEMSE) - -
3,470 -

The Company did not have any operating lease commitments
at the end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).

PR EIR - ANR R ATl AE & H & &
E(ZE—=F | o

2

T
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33.

34.

35.

Commitments 33. &iE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note B ST EE325E 5 2 gL TR EARIESN - AR
32 above, the Group had the following capital commitments at SERIRERRZ BARENAT
the end of the reporting period:
2013 2012
—E-=f —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEMEESE T
Construction of factories and purchases of BRIAIEE 2B &
machinery and equipment for the Jiangxi EEMEE LR
Project 2,091 35,225
Renovation of factories for the investment REHEREER 2 HE
project in Indonesia 1,529 18,507
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEAEE  #Ek
equipment HEEE 1,206 1,113
Renovation of factories REWE 1,724 233
6,550 55,078
Authorised, but not contracted for: EEBEERETL
Investment in the Jiangxi Project RERIREE 38,610 51,747
The Company did not have any other significant commitments BN A (A L fth B K

at the end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).

Related Party Transactions

The directors are the key management personnel of the Group.
Details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 8 to the
financial statements.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills
receivables, other receivables, accounts and bills payables,
accrued liabilities and other payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

34.

35.

REREER - AR
(ZE—ZF :8|) -

g

=

BEALRS
EEAFEEZEBEEAR - REFH
2 BTSRRI S -

MERREE 2B ERBUER

AEENIEeRTABENBRITER
EREMREFEER - ZFERTAZ
IZEANARBEAEELEMTER - K
SEBEARUCER N TR - EtEUR -
NS RRE - Bt B EREBENK
ERBHEMESREENAE  DRELEE
BEEES -
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35.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and
credit risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating interest
rate borrowings in order to manage its interest rate risk.
The interest-bearing bank borrowings, and cash and cash
equivalents are stated at amortised cost and not revalued on a
periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and expenses are
credited/charged to the income statement as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s net profit (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings).

35.

—Z—=%4%3% Annual Report 2013 @

MBEREE 2 BERBE®E

FEMSWMTAY T BRRIIEEFER
B ANERR - RBESERRIEER
B - EFEBNLHEEE S BERAR
2 - AT STRL -

AZRE R
AEBAHAE 2 ST R LY M E B
AEEILF BB ORITHEEM -

AEBEREERENFREENEEE
MERER - 5t ERTEE  RERREF
BEEERBERAAR MTEEHE
1 o FRIRA R R RIZE WAL
BEELETRER 05K -

TRENMIMAEMCEERFTE - K&
BaM(RFEEEZE) AR ZAEA]
REE B BURIE -

Group REE
Increase in Decrease in
interest rate net profit
FUZRIE N Faty I
(basis points) HK$'000
(EE) FET
2013 —F-=F 100 3,876
2012 —E——4F 100 4,189
Ccompany RN AE]
Increase in Decrease in
interest rate net profit
FUZRIE N HEF) Rk
(basis points) HK$'000
(EE) FHT
2013 —ET—=F 100 2,340
2012 —E——F 100 2,340
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Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from a substantial portion of sales or
purchases by operating units in United States Dollars (“US$")
and RMB. As the foreign currency risks arising from the sales
and purchases can be set off with each other, the Group
believes its exposure to exchange rate risk is minimal. It is the
policy of the Group to continue maintaining the balance of its
sales and purchases in the same currency. However, as the
functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are RMB and the
Group's financial statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars,
there will be a translation credit to the exchange fluctuation
reserve as a result of RMB appreciation. The majority of the
Group's operating assets are located in Mainland China and
denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors the foreign exchange
exposures and will consider hedging the significant foreign
currency exposures should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s net profit (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

SN LB
FEFAXRSERRAR - FRRRTIE
BEBEMAET(ET)) RAREETT
BEEEL -ANEEELEZIMNERMRRA A
EAEEE  AREREEEE ZINERR
- REE BB ERIABRER#ET
BE 2 VFEBR - A R PEMER
AINARB B R AEE 2 I 5HR
RIAEBTER  HARBHESTESE
qu)\E R EDRERBHIE S W - AEREX
DEBBEEAUNPEAE  TAAR
ﬁ%%ﬁ °

$'§l H HwJIﬂE}mﬁHEH%EQFﬁ% °
CEREeRSINERR  WERE
Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ’]?l\@ﬁﬁﬁ °

TEFIR AR E R 5 M T 43R
RSB HBBBERTE) MRS
BT BB (A A E R A A
TEEH) -

Increase/
(decrease) in
net profit
goFg M,
CRA)
HK$'000
FET
2013 —E-=F
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT HARKEE 640
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WA T ARBHE (640)
2012 —E——F
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT HARKEE 141
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT EAREHE (141)
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Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
accounts and bills receivables) and the projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other banking facilities. The directors have
reviewed the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group has no significant
liquidity risk. The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was less than one year.

The loan agreements contain repayment on-demand clauses
giving the banks the unconditional right to call in the loans at
any time and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity
profile, the bank borrowings are classified as “on demand”.
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe
that the loans will be called in its entirety within 12 months,
and they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance
with the maturity dates as set out in the loan agreements. This
evaluation was made considering: the financial position of the
Group and the Company at the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group’s and the Company’s compliance with
the loan covenants; the lack of events of default, and the fact
that the Group and the Company have made all previously
scheduled repayments on time. The maturity profile of the
Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

Analysed into: Par)iv =1
Within one year —F R
In the second year FF
In the third to fourth years, FE=FEENF

inclusive (BiEERMTE)

RENEEE R
AEBERAEHE DAL R TALR
AESERzAR - WATAGZERHT
ARBHAE(WRRRERRRE) 2 515
R AREES KRR -

REEEBE MG SRITEE REMRT
EE  #FEASHBERHEREREZMN
T EFCRIAKENEEESNE
AXHFR  ARB/AEELES KA
HELAR - AREMBHRBERRS AR
BAENARERNFAEZIRBERIR—
o

B e e <IRITAEERIT AR
RERER 2GR Bt - RITBEZE
HIBRGERIRERER] - BEAAL
R BEFATRAZFEEREN12MEA
NEER2HER  MEEFRRZETEN
B ERERGHEMY 2 EFRHRER - 1t
AHETER : ARBERARRNPHERE
o REIZ MR - ARBRARRE
STERRGH  WEBRFEOFFURAE
B R AR RIAE D ERIREER - RIRE
HIR » AREERBESORMBNIGE
ZETRIRITERIIGERAT

Group company
AEH AT
2012 2012
—E—-fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
150,933 42,883
35,833 3,747
250,385 202,494

437,151 249,124



Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &3 (BB )ERER 2 7

to Financial Statements (continued)
MmRMIEE )

(31 March 2013)
(ZZ—=F=A=+—AR)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2013 and 2012.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total
current assets divided by total current liabilities. The Group’s
policy is to keep the current ratio above 1.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors of the Company on 28 June
2013.
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